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Grапtтhоrпtоп
Ао ооо <<Grапt Тhоrпtоп>
Республика Узбекистан,

100128, Ташкент,

ул. Абая. 1А

Тел.: +998 (71) 230_45_43

Факс: +998 (71) 244-47-43

Email: audit@uz. gt.com

<Grant Тhоrпtоп> Ао LLC
1А, АЬау Str.,

Tashkent, 100128,
Republic of Uzbekistan

Tel.: +998 (71) 230-45-43

Fах: +998 (71) 244_47_43

W: www. g гапtthоrпtоп.uz

Independent auditors' opinion

То the Supetvisory Board of
FЕ <Mikomoliya Tashkiloti OASISCREDIT> LLC МFО

Орiпiоп

ý7'е hаче audited thе financial statements of а Foreign Enterprise in the fotm of а Lirnited Uability
ComPany "Miktomoliya Tashkiloti OASISCШDIT" МFО фereinafter refetred to as the "Organizadon"),
consisting of а statement of financial position as оf 31 December 2024 апd а ptofit and loss statemenb
and оЙеr statement оf comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and йе statement of
cash flours fot Йе yeat ended on Йat date, and the notes to the financial statements, including а summary
of significant accounйg policies.

In out oPinion, the accompanying financial statements ptesent fafuly, in а11 material Iespects, йе Гшапсiаl
position of Йе Organization as of 31 Decemb er 2024, and its financial results and cash florrrs for йе year
ended at that date, in accotdance ЙЙ Intemational Financial Reporting StandMds (IFRS).

Basis fot орiпiоп

ý7е conducted orrr audit in accordance uzith International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilities
in accordance Йth Йеsе standards are described furйet in the section " Auditor's responsibility for
auditing consolidated financial statementst' of out opinion. ý7е ate independent of thе Otganization in
accordance Йth Йе ethical requtements йаt ate relevant to ouf audit of йе schedule lп йе Code оf
EЙics of ProfessionalAccountants of Йе InternationalEЙics Standatds BoMd fotAccoufitants @AIESB
Code) and еЙiсаl requfuements аррliсаЫе to ouf audit of йе financial statements ln йе Republic of
UzbeНstan, and we hаче firlfilled out eйical tesponsibilities in accotdance uzith йese requtements. 'ý(l'e

believe Йat the audit eЙdence we hаче oЬtained is sufficient and apptopriate to provide а basis fot our
opinion.

othet iпtьtrпаtiоп

Management is tеsРопsiЫе fot the oth* infotmation. Ойеt information includes infotmation contained
in the annual fepott but does not include thе financial statements and orrt auditor's teport йеtеоп.

Out opirrion on Йе financial statements does not extend to thе ойеt information and we,will not expfess
any fоtm of assufance and conclusion on Йаt informadon.

Membef of Grant Thornton International
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Grапtтhоrпtоп
An instinct fог growth"

In connection Йth our audit of Йе financial statements, ouf responsibiЁty Ь to read йе ойеr infotmation
and, in doing so, considet whеЙеr thete ate material inconsistencies ЬеМееп the ойеr infotmation and
Йе financial statements, of ouf knowledge ohained during the audit, and vrhейеt йе other infotmation
contains оЙm роssiЫе matedal distortion.

If, based on Йе vrotk urе have реtfоrmеd, urе conclude йаt suсh ойш information contains а materjal
misstatement, ýIe afe rcquited to feport that fact.

ResponsibiЦties of mалаgеmепt апd those chatged with gоvеtпапсе for the frпапсiаI statements

Management is responsible fot the prepatation and fait ptesentation of these financial statements in
accotdance Йth IFRS and fot such intemal control as management determines is necessaч, to enable thе
ptepatation оf financial statements Йat are ftee from material misstatement, whethet due to ftaud or errot.

In preparing the financial statements, mafiagement is responsiЫe fot assessing thе Entity's ability to
condnue as а going concem, for disclosing information telating to going concern, as appropriate, and fot
tepotting on а going concefn basis, unless managemefit intends to liquidate the Entity, cease her activities
ot uzhеп it hаs no teal altetnative to sчсh activities.

Management and those chatged Йth govemance afe responsiЫe for ovetseeing the prepatation of йе
financial statements of Йе Organization

Auditot's Responsibilities fot the Audit of the FiпапсiаI Staterпents

Our objectives afe to oЫain reasonable assutance about whейеt Йе financial statements are ftee ftom
matedal misstatement, wheЙet due to ftaud ot ettot, and to issue an auditor's tepott йаt includes our
opinion. RеаsопаЫе assufance is а hlgh degtee оf assurance, but is not а guatantee Йat an audit conducted
in accotdance ЙЙ ISAs vлill always detect а matedal misstatement whеп it exbts. Misstatements can arise
ftom ftaud of effof and ate consideted material i{, individually ot in thе аggrеgлtе, they could teasonably
Ье expected to influence the economic decisions of usets taken on thе basis of Йese financial statements.

As part of an audit in accotdance йth International Standмds on Auditin5 uze exetcise professional
judgment and maintain ptofessional skepticism tfuoughout йе audit. In addition, urе do the folloчring:

о identify and assess йе risks of material misstatement of financial statements due to ftaud or ешоt;
design and реrfоrm audit procedutes in response to these risks; оЬtаiп audit evidence йаt is sufГrcient
and appropriate to ptovide а basis fot out opinion. Тhе risk оf not detecting а matetial misstatement
ftom ftaud is gteater Йап Йе dsk of not detecting а material misstatement ftom an eftof because ftaud
may include collusion, fotgeý, omission, misrepresentation, ot circumvention оf intetnal conttols;

о ohain ап undetstanding of йе lnternal control system relevant to йе audit in order to design audit
procedures Йat ate appropriate in the cfucumstances, but not fot Йе pu4)ose of expressing an opinion
оп Йе effectiveness of thе Otganization's intetnal control system;

О evaluate Йе appropriateness of the accountbg policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estbates and telated disclosutes ptepated Ьу mапаgеmепq

о conclude on йе approptiateness of management's application оf the gorng concetn assumption and,
based on Йе audit evidence obtained, whethet а material uncertainty exists telated to events of
conditions that may cast significant douh on the OtganDation's ability to continue as а going concefn.
If we conclude that а matedal uncertainty exists, ,we ше requited to dtaw attention in out auditot's
tepott to Йе related disclosutes in thе financial statemerrts ot, if such disclosutes ate inappropriate,
mоdiф out opinion. Out conclusions afe based оп йе audit ейdепсе oharned up to thе date of orrt
auditot's teport. Howevef, futще events ot conditions mау cause йе Otganization to cease to Ье аЫе
to continue as а going concetn;

-



Grапtтhоrпtап
Ап instinct fоr growth"

'ýИе communicate Йth Management and Йоsе chatpd Йth govefnance, bdnging to thet attention, among
оЙш things, information about йе planned scope and timing оf the audit, as vrell as signrficant
observations on Йе results of Йе audit, including significant deГrciencies in thе intemal control ýystem,
which we identiф dшiпg the audit.

Genetal Jamshid Katimov

Jakhongt Tulyaganov

07 July 2025
Tashkent, llzbeНstan

'i{*i]r*пt ,o,,,,}i*
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Managementls confirmation of responsibility fot the pfepafation and approval of the
financial statements for the yeat ended 31Decembet20?4

Management is tesponsible for Йе pteparation of financial statements Йаt fЙlу reflect in all material
fespects thе financial position of йе Foteigrr Entetptise in thе form of Limited Liability Company
"Mikromoliya Tashkiloti OASISCREDIT" МFО фereinafter referred to as the "Otяanization") as оf 31
Decembq 2024, as well as fepofts profit or loss and other comptehensive income, cash flочzs and changes
in equity fot Йе year then ended ln accotdance urith Intemational Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS').

In pteparing the financial statements, management is tesponsiЫe for:

. ensuting Йе cottect selection and application of accorrnting policies;

. presentation of information, incl. accounting policies in а form that ensures йаt such infotmation is
relevant, rеliаЫе, comparable and undgstandable.

' Ptoviding additional disclosutes urhеп compliance йй IFRS requlrements is insufficient to enable users
of financial statements to undgstand the impact Йаt particulш tfansactions, other events or conditions
have on йе finarrcial position and financial pelformance of the Organizatioщ And
. assessment of йе Otganization's ability to continue as а going concefir.

Management is also tesponsible for:

' development, implementation and maintenance of an effective and teliable intetnal conttol system in thе
Organization;

' Maintaining tecotds in а fotm Йаt allovzs the Organizadon's ttansactj,ons to Ье dbclosed and explained,
as well as ptoviding teliable information about the financial position of йе Otganization at any date and
ensuring that Йе financial statements соmрlу Йth Йе requirements of IFRS;

' maintaining accounting fecofds in accotdance ЙЙ Йе leфslation and accounting standatds of thе
Republic of UzbeНstan;

. taking all reasonably possible measufes to ensufe Йе safety of the Otganization's assets; And

. prevention and detection оf ftaud and оЙш йolations.

The financial statements of the Oцanization fot the year ended 31 Decembet 2024 were approved Ьу thе
Management of йе Oцanization on behalf of the Organization on _June 2025.

07 July 2025

а
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fuцжьф
одsrsсRЕDlт Б

Guseynov М.А. RusIamova F.Y.
Genetal Directof chief Accountant
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FE KMLKROMOL|YA гдSНк/Lотl одSrSсRЕDlЪ LLC MFO
Fiпапсiаl sfafemenfs fоr the уеаr епdеd 31 DесеmЬеr 2024

Statement оf financial position

31 December
2а24

2
(iп thousands of UZS)

31 DесеmЬеr
2023

ц

Цl

Notesц

lЦ

д

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Due frоm banks

Microcredits

Advance payments fог iпсоmе tax

Dеfеrrеd tax asset
Fixed assets and intangible assets

оthеr assets

8

18

9

10

3 966 573

3 007

88 53,1 286

264 091

111 1 84

13 131 002

3 6,17 309

1 8 520 469

49 1 77 501

178 872

85 173

8 088 495

273 909

Total assets 1 09 624 452 76 324 419

ц
Liahilities
Оthеr Ьоrrоwiпgs

оthеr liabilities
11

12

52 845 849

1 6 433 087

24 540 880
7 657 464

TotaI liabilities 69 278 936 32 198 344-l

13-
Equity
Authorized capital

Accumulated loss
45 358 669

(5 013 153)

45 358 669
(1 232 594)

Total equity 40 345 516 44 126 075

Total liabilities and equity 109 624 452 76 324 41 9

ц

frr

-t

-

д

гIl

ц

Approved and sцпеd on Ъеhаlf оf йе management оf йе Organtzation:

07 July 2025

/_l

Guseynov IVI

General Dfuector
RustamdvdJF.Y.

сыеf Accountant

The поtеs оп Радеs б t0 40 аrc ап ittteдralpшt oJ thеsеfпапсiаl staterпeпts.
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FE KMLKROMOLIYA IASHKILOTI одS/SсRЕDIЪ) LLC MFO
Fiпапсiаl sfafemeлfs for the уеаr епdеd 31 DесеmЬеr 2024

3
(iп thousands of UZS)

Satement of profit or loss and othef comprehensive income

Notes

Fоr the уеаr
ended 31

December 2024

Fоr the уеаr
ended 31

December 2023

Interest iпсоmе calculated at the effective interest гаtе
other interest income

!пtеrеst expense calculated at the effective inteгest rate

14
14

14
14

30 027 003
92 569

(5 485 436)

14 026 736

(714 584)
оthеr interest expenses
Net interest iпсоmе

1 448752
23 185 384

655 8,1 8
12 656 334

Рrочisiопiпg fоr credit losses оп debt financial assets 47104 ,1 649 106

Net interest iпсоmе аftеr provision for credit losses

Commission expenses
Net income/(expenses) from transactions iп fоrеigп сurгепсу and
frоm rечаlчаtiоп of foreign сч]тепсу
Оthеr орегаtiпg income

15

16

17

18 474 948

(1 710 963)

(3 249 925)
56 802

r а07 228

(762 809)

(128 942)

Administrative and оthеr ореrаtiпq е,

Profit / (loss) before tax
17 373 970 8 382 з14;

lпсоmе tax savinqs/(e
Net profit / (loss) for the

Approved and signed on Ъеhаlf оf йе management оf the Organuation:

The поtеs оп Раgеs б to 40 аrc ап iпtеgrаl part of these Jiпапсiаl staterпeпts.

(3 803 108)
22 549

3 780 559

1 733 163
5 575

1 738 738

Rusth,rrlbva F.Y.
сыеf Accountant

07 July 2025

_
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FE KMLKROMOL|Yд гдSНк/LоТl OдS/SCREDITD LLC MFO
Fiпапсiаl sfafemenfs fоr the уеаr ended 31 DесеmЬеr 2024

Statement оf changes in equity

4
(iп thousands of UZS)

Е

-
Authorized

Retained
earnings /

(Ассчmчlаtеd
Total capital

- Ваlапсе as of 01 Jапча 2023 12 677 074 2 971 333 9 705 741

Net рrоfit / (loss) fоr the

Total income / (loss) fоr the уеаr

1 738 738

1 738 738

1 738 738

1 738 738

32 681 59532 681 595- lпсrеаsе the authorized capi

rE

Ваlапсе as of 31 DесеmЬеr 2023 45 358 669 1 232

Net profit / (loss) fоr the уеаr (з 7S0 559)

44 126 075

(3 780 559)
Total income / (loss) for the year (3 780 559) (3 780 559)

Ваlапсе as of 31 DесеmЬеr 2024 40 345 516

Il

Approved and sцпеd on Ъеhаlf of йе management оf the Otganlzation:

fl

rl

li

El

rll

IlИtкрлп-л

"аiЙ;Ъ?,ио..{ýý;;;;#
General Director

07 July 2025

сыеf Accountant

The поtеs оп Раgе.r б to 40 аrc ап iпПgrаlРаrt of thеtеJiпапсiаl stаtеrпепts.



ц

-

ц

Е

FЕ KM|KROMOL|YA ТдSНКlLог' OAS/SCREDIъ) LLC МFо
Fiпапсiаl sfafemenfs fоr the уеаr епdеd 31 DесеmЬеr 2024

cash flочr staternent

5
(iп thousands of UZS)

Fоr the уеаr
ended 31

December 2024

Fоr the уеаr
ended 3't

December 2023-

ц

Ei

Casfi flow from operating activifies
lnterest rесеiчеd
!nterest paid
Commissions paid
Net income/(expense) received frоm tгansactions in fогеigп сurгепсу
Оthеr ореrаtiпg income rесеiчеd
реrsоппеl costs
Administrative and оthеr ореrаtiпg expenses
paid income tax

28 188 885
(5 380 105)
(1 710 963)
(3 249 925)

56 802
(9 209 519)
(9 274 569)

13 164 645
(671 813)
(762 809)
(12в 942)

(4 481 452)
(3 900 862)

-l

-

Cash flows frоm operating activities before changes iп ореrаtiпg asseЪ
and liabilities

Net (iпсrеаsе)/dесrеаsе iп ореrаfiпg assefs
Due frоm banks
мiсrосrеdits
оthеr assets

Net i п crease/(decrease,l i п operating l i аЬ i l iti es
Оthеr borrowings
оthеr liabilities

68,1

(668 075)

(3 007)
(41 408 920)

(3 457 236)

28 304 969
8 556 533

192 239

3 026 528

(43 092 680)
(31 6 1 30)

24 540 880
3 619 964

ц

-

Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
lпсrеаsе the authorized capital
Acquisition of fixed assets and intangible assets

(8 675 736)

(6 145 773)

(12 221 438)

32 681 595
(4 127 506)

ц

-

ц

ц

ц

ц

ц

-

ц

ц

ЛIеf cash flow from investing activities

lmpact of changes in exchange rаtеs оп cash and cash equivalents

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents Ф the beginning of the rероrtiпg period

lmpact of expected credit losses оп cash and cash equivalents 23 610 (52 21 0)

(6 145 773)

244 003

(14 553 896)
1 8 520 469

28 554 089

16 280 441
2 240 028

Cash and cash equivalenЪ at the end ofthe rероЁiпg period 3 966 573 'I8 520 469

Balance оf саsh and cash equival,ents at the end оf the pciod less proйsions fot expected credit losses,
see note 7.

Approved and signed on behalf of йе management of йе Otganization:

Guseynov М

07 July 2025

hlЁ\а oAsIsaREDI,

&хW

чIRомOL&а
ЗSHKILOTI
0ASISCREDIT RustЖova F.Y.

сыеf Accountant

Тhе поtеs оп Раgеs б to 40 ate ап iпtеgrаl part of these jпапсiаl stаtеrпепts.



FE KMLKROMOL|YA IдSНК/LоТI одS/SсRЕDIЪ) LLC MFO
Nofes to fiпапсiаl sfafemenfs far the уеаr ended 31 DесеmЬеr 2024

6
(iп thousands of UZS)

-

*

i{otes to йе financial statements

Рrimаry Activity

FЕ, d\,{IKROMOLIYA TASHKLOTI OASISCREDIT) LLC МFО фereinaftet teferred to as the
"Otganization") was established on 5 Octobet 2021, п the form оf а limlted liability соmрапу.

Тhе otganization is teфstered in the Republic of UzbeНstan to рrойdе micofinance services in accotdance
ЙЙ thе teфsttation in Йе register of otganDations No. 95 dated 1 5 August 2022, issued Ьу йе Сепttаl Bank
of йе Republic of UzbeНstan феrеiпаftеr tefetted to as the "CBU").

Тhе main actiЙty of Йе Organization is йе implementation of microcedits, mictoleasing, issuance of
mictoctedits to legal entj.ties and individuals in thе tettitory of thе Republic of UzbeНstan.

As of 31 December 2024, Ье Organization carrjes out its mictofinance actiйties tЪ_tough the Head OfГrce
and 3 Ыапсhеs in thе terdtory of thе Republic of UzbeНstan (as of 31 Decemb er 202З: Head Оffiсе and 1

Ыапсh).

Legal addtess of the Otganization: Republic of UzbeНstan, Tashkent city, Yunusabad district, Oloy Bozon
stteet, house 63.

The total number of employees as of 31 December 2024 was 86 people. (31 Decembet 202З: 58 people).

Members of thе Organization:

31 December 31 December
2024 202з

Shareholders Share (%) Share (%)

oasis lnvest uzbekistan Limited 100.0 100,0

The есопоmiс environment iп which the Organization operateý

Тhе economy оf Йе Republic of UzbeНstan continues to show some featutes of an emergrrrg market. Тhе
govemment is developing the lфslаtiче, tax and regulatory frameuzotk necessary in а matket есопоmу, and
is also implementlng significant economic and social changes. Тhе furthg economic development of the
Republic of UzbeНstan 1аrgф depends on йе effectiveness of economic measufes, financial mechanisms
and monetary policy adopted Ьу Йе Government, as well as the development of йе tax, legal and political
system.

Ор е rat io п al е пv iro п mепt

Opetating in an emetging economy such as UzbeНstan involves tisks йat ate less соmmоп in mote developed
markets. These include economic volatility, political and social uncertainý, and evolйng lфslative
ftameworks. Асtчаl or perceived instabdity-wheth* financial, political, ot legal-may advetsely аffесt
investot confiderrce and vzeaken йе overall economic oudook, including йat of the microfinance sectof.

These financial statements do not teflect Йе potential futute adjustrnents Йat may шise ftom uncertainties in
the country's economic ot tegulatory envitonment. Should matetial changes occur, their impact will Ье
tecognDed in thе repotting petiod in which thе outcome becomes рtоЬаЫе and can Ье reliably measured.

UzbeНstan's legal and regulatory systems-including tax, cuffency conttol, and customs legrslation-ate still
evolving and may Ье subject to inconsistent interpretation. This pfesents challenges in ensudng соmр[апсе
and cteates operational risks fot businesses, particularly in regulated sectors such as microfinance. The
Соmрапу rl;rау tace difficulties opetating in йis environment, vzhiсh could affect its financial and operational
реrfоrmапсе.

ц

ц

_

ц
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FE KM|KROMOL|Yд TASHK/LOTI одS/SсRЕDIЪ) LLC MFO
Nofes to fiпапсiаl sfafemenfs for the уеаr ended 31 DесеmЬеr 2024

т
(iп thousands of UZS)

The economic enrrironment of йе Repubпc of uzbeНstan is influenced, among other factots, Ьу the
prevailing inflation dynamics.In 2024, Йе annual inflation tate reached 9.8%о, compated to 8.8% recorded in
2023,

Gtoss Domestj.c Ptoduct (GDP) groчrth temained positive, ЙЙ ап increase of 6.8% п 2О24 relative to the
previous yeat, following а 6.0Оh gro.b,tlr rate tn 2023.

In FеЬruаry 2024,Fitсh Ranngs affirmed йе Republrc оf UzbeНstan's Long-Term Foreign-Currency Issuer
Default Raflng at "BB-" ЙЙ а Stable Oudook.

As of 25 July 2024, tbe Central Bank of UzbeНstan reduced its policy tate ftom 14.0Оh to tЗ.5Yо.

3.t

Fiпапсiаl reporting principles

Applicahle standardý

Тhе ассоmрапFпg financial statements have been ptepated in accotdance йй thе requkements of
Intemational Financial Reporting Standatds ("IFRS') apptoved Ьу the Intemational Financial Reporting
Standмds Вошd ('IFRS') based on btorical cost accounting rules, adjusted fot thе initial tecognition of
Гrrrancial insttuments at fait value and at fair value thtough profit ot loss and at fait value through other
comptehensive income. Тhе accounting policies used in йе prepatation of йеsе financial statements are
ptesented Ьеlоur.

Тhе organЙation maintains tecords in accordance йth йе tequitements оf the crrrtent lфslаtiоп of йе
Republic of UzbeНstan. These financial statements hаче been ptepмed оп the basis of these accounting
records, ЙЙ adjustments песеssач/ to bring йеm into line йй IFRS in all material fespects.

3,2 Functional and presentation счrrепGу

Тhе national cuffency оf the Republic оf UzbeНstan is thе "Uzbek sum" феtеiпаftеr - UZS). The Uzbek sum
hаs been сhоsеп as the functional сuttепry and the сшtепry in чrЫсh these financial statements ate ptesented.

дl financial statemerrts hаче been rounded to йе nearest йousand.

3.3 Gчrrепсу operations

Foteign cuttencies, especially Йе US dollar and йе Euro, play а significant Iole rn determining йе economic
patametefs of mапу business transactions carried out in thе Republic of UzbeНstan. Тhе tаЫе below shows
Йе exchange fates of the Uzbek sum against the US dollar and йе Euro, set Ьу thе Сепшаl Bank of йе
RерuЪliс оf LjzЪeНstan:

Date USD EURo

3'| December 2024
31 DесеmЬеr 2023

12 920,48

12 338,77

13 436,0,1

13 7з1,82
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4 ImроЁапt estimates and professional judgment

Тhе pteparation оf financial statements in accotdance ЙЙ IFRS requires management to make judgments,
assumptions and estbates Йаt affect Йе application of accoundng policres and йе presentation of assets
and liabilities, income and expenses in йе financial statements. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based оп histotical expetience and оЙеt applicable factors neceýsafy to detetmine йе cMrying amount of
assets and liabilities. АlЙоuф estimates ше based on mfflagement's best knowledge of йе cutrent situation,
actual tesults mау ultimаtф diffet matedally ftom йе estimates assumed.

Тhе entity makes estimates and assumpdons Йаt affect thе reported amounts of assets and liabilities in йе
next financial year. Estimates and assumptions ме continually rейеuzеd based on management's expet{ence
and other factofs, including expectations of futше events Йаt management believes ме teasonable in йе light
of curtent citcumstances. In the pIocess оf applying accounting poJicies, managemerrt also uses professional
judgment and estbates. Judgments Йat have thе most significant effect on Йе amounts recognized in йе
financial statements and estimates that can cause а significant adjustment to the cMrying amount of assets

and liabilities йtЬ thе next financial year include:

Вusiпеss continuity

These financial statements reflect mffragement's ctltfent assessmerrt оf Йе impacts that affect Йе operations
and financial position of the Organization. The future development оf йе economy of йе Repub[c оf
UzbeНstan depends to а large extent on Йе effectiveness оf measufes taken Ьу йе Govemment of йе
Republic of Uzbekbtan and othet factors, including legislative and politrcal events beyond the control оf йе
Organization. Тhе management of Йе Otganization is unable to ptedict thе consequences of the impact of
Йеsе factots оп Йе financial condition in the futше. Тhе accompanylng financial statemerrts do not include
adjustments related to Йis tisk.

Меаsurеtпепt ofptouision fot expected credit lоssеs.

Measuting Йе provision for expected credit losses fot financial assets measufed at аmоfйеd cost and
measured at fair value tkough other comprehensive income (ГVОСD is an atea that requires йе use of
complex models and significant assumptions about futute economic conditions and credit behavior (for
example, the probabiliý of counterparry default and tesulting losses). А numbet of significant judgments are
also required in applying Йе accoundng requftements fot measuring expected ctedit losses, such as:

о Detetminatj.on of criteia fot а significant increase in ctedrt risk;
о selection of appropriate models and assumptions fot measuring expected cedit losses;
о Establishing the number and telative wеiфts of роssiые future scenados fot еасh type оf

product/market and Йе cottesponding expected ctedit loss; and
о creation of organizations оf similat financial assets for the рuцроsе оf measuring expected credit

losses.

The ctedit loss ptoЙsion fоt financial instfumefits is affected Ьу а number of factots, as set out below:

о Transfets and the cotesponding measufement of the ctedit loss ptoйsion between stage 1 (12-
mопth ECL) and Stage 2 (lifetime expected credit losses - not impйed assets) ot 3 (lifetime expected
ctedit losses - impaired assets) because the balances ецlеdепсеd а significant inшease (ot decrease)
in ctedit risk Йthin one Stage ot bpaitmerrt ovef а pedod folloчzed Ьу ап increase (ot decrease)
ftom 12-mопй ECL to lifetime ECL;

о cteation of additional ptoйsions fot newly tecognized ot purchased financial instfuments dming the
period, as ,well as Йeit tecovefy in tespect of financial instruments dмecogrrized during the period;

о Тhе impact on EcL estimates оf changes in pD, deЬt at defaulq and loss if default ovet йе period
resulting ftom tegulш updates of model inputs;

о Тhе impact on йе EcL measutement оf changes in contract interest requfuements, taking into
accourrt Йе effect of time, as ECL are measuted on а cuffent pfesent value basis;

о Financial assets detecognized dudng йе pciod and wtite-offs/revetsals оf рюйsiопs telating to
assets that wete wtjtten off/revшsed duting йе period;

_
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that а lessee-seller uses to measufe а lease liaЪility
seller-lessee does not recognrse any amount оf galn

о sale оf subsidiaries and classification into discontinued opetations and assets hеld for sale;
о Тhе impact of changes in exchange rates whеп tecalculating assets denominated ln brcign cutrencies

and othet movements

Fait чаlче of frпапсiаl iпsttulпепts

Тhе fait value of financial irrstfuments that afe not quoted in an active matket is determined using а vatieý
of valuation techniques. If valuation techniques (for example, models) ate used to determine fair value, йеу
ate apptoved and rеgulаф teviewed Ьу qualified personnel whо ate independent of the department/unit
applyng those techniques. A1l models ate ceftified befote they ate used; models ate also adjusted to reflect
асt'мl datb and comparable market ptices. Models use only observable data to the extent роssiЫе, but areas
such as credit risk фоth own and counteцparty tisk), volatility and cottelation requite manaýment to make
estimates. Changes in Йе assumptions about Йеsе factots could аffесt thе repotted fй value in the financial
statements.

Transition to пеw оr revised standards and interpretations

Тhе following amendments to thе standatds became applicable to йе OrganDation beginning January 1,
2024,Ьt did not hаче а significant impact оп thе Organization,

Аmепdпепts to IFЮ 16 - Lease liability iп а sale апd leaseback

Аплепdtпепts to IAS 1- Classilication ofliabiftties as cutteлt ot non-cuttent

Amendments to IAS 1 define the tequirements fot cbssiýzing liabilities as cuffent or non-cuffent. The
amendments clarify:

о ýиhаt is meant Ьу thе tight to defer fepayment
о Тhаt йе dght to deferment must exist at йе end оf the reporting period
о That classifi.cation does not depend оп йе likefihood йаt йе entity will exetcise its right of defement
о That only if ап embedded derivative in а convertible liability is itself an equity instrument, йе teшs

of йе obligation vzill not affect its classification

In addition, the entity is requited to disclose when а liability arising ftom а loan agreement is classifi.ed as non-
negotiable and the entity's dght to defet tepayment is contingent оп compliance ЙЙ futute covenants wiйin
Melve months.

SuррIiеrFiпапсiпgАgееlпепts -Аmепdпепts to IAS 7 апd IFRS 7

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Саsh Flочrs and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosutes ctмify йе
chatactetistics of suppliet financing arangements and tequire additional disclosure of suсh arrangements. Тhе
disclosute tequirements in the amendments are intended to assist users of financial statements in
undetstanding the impact оf suppliet financing aцangements оп thе Otganization's bbilities, cash flоurs and
exposrrte to liquidity risk.

Тhе application of these amendments did not hаче а matedal impact on йе fiпапсiаl statements.
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entered into fоrсе

reporting periods beginning on of after 01

6

6.{

Basic accounting policies

ýtandards that have Ьееп issued Ьчt not yet

Certain new standards Ъесаmе еffесUче for the Or ganlzation's

Jапuаry 2024 and wefe not еаф adopted Ъу thе Or gлпlzлtiоп.

Standatds not effective for annual periods endirg 31 December 2024

' IF'RS 18 Presentation and Disclosufe in Frnancial Statements

' Amendments to IAS 21 Тhе Effects of Changes rn Forergn Exchange
Rates - Lack оf ЕхсhапgеаЪmtу

Effective fot annual
periods on ot after

1Jапuаry 2027

1Jапuаry 2025

Тhе Organization expects that the application of Йе standatds listed above urill not have а material effect on
tbe Otganпation's financial statements and financial position in йе period of first application.

6.2 Fаir value mеаsчrеmепt

Fait value is йе pdce Йаt чrоuld Ье teceived to sell arr asset ot pard to transfer а liability in an оtdеф
transaction beffieen matket participants at Йе measrrrement date in thе ptlncipaI matket ot, if not ачаilаЫе,
Йе most advantageous mшkеt to чrЫсh the Organization has access in the specified date. The йir value оf а
liability reflects the risk of default.

То Йе extent possiЫe, the Entity measrшes the fart value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active
market fior Йаt instrument. А matket is considered active if quotes are readily ачаilаЫе and teflect actual and
tegulat ttansactions ЬеМееп independent mлket partrcipants.

In Йе absence of а cuttent price quotation in an acdve market, Йе Entity uses valuadon techniques that make
maximum use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Тhе valuation methods
chosen include all factors that matket participants uzould take into account in йе circumstances.

Тhе best evidence оf Йе fait value оf а financial instrument at initral recogrrition is usually the ffansaction
price, urhich is Йе Йir value оf thе consideration paid ot teceived. If the Ennty determines йat йе fait value
at initial recognition diffets ftom Йе transaction price and the fair value is not evidenced Ьу а cuffent quoted
price in ап active matket for а similar asset ot liability and is not based on а valuation technique йаt uses опlу
observable inputs, the financial instrument Ъ initially measuted at fait value. adjusted to defet tecogrrition of
any difference ЬеМееп the transaction price and fair value. Aftш initial recognidon, йis difference is
amottized to profit or loss очеt the life оf the instrument, but no later than чzhеп thе estimate is firlly
supported Ьу оЬsеrчаЫе inputs or when thе ttansaction is completed.

If Йе price of а ftansaction in an inactive market diffgs frоm йе fй value of cuttent matket transacdons in
ап observable matket for Йе same instrument, ot is based on а valuadon technique whose inputs include only
information ftom observable markets, йе Entity recogrrizes immediately йе diffetence beмeen the
transaction pdce and fait value ("Fitst Day Income") in ptofit or loss. \ХЪеп non-observable infotmation is
used, thе difference between the ttansact_ion ptice and thе value detetmined based on the model is tecognized
in profit or loss only if Йе input becomes observable ot if йе financial instrument is detecognized.

6.3 Effective interest rate (discount method}

The discount tate is thе effective intetest fate, ot matket tate of interest, at wЫсh all futute cash flows ftom
а financial instrument are teduced to ptesent value.

Cash flows fot financial assets and liabi]ities ate discounted based on futute саsh flows expected at thе асtчаl
conttactual fate a"nd ап approptiate discount factot detetmined based on Йе discount tate.

In Йе event Йаt саsh flows on а financial instrument ate expected fot more than one penod (interest income
ot еЧ)епsеs ассruе mote than once on cettain dates dutmg the entire life of the financial instfumeflt, andf or
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fepayment оf thе рriпфаI amount is cattied out in installments), the calculation оf fufure cash flows, the
discount factor and thе dbcounted amounts of these flours is catded out for еасh such period. Тhе ptesent
value of а ГlлапсiаL instrument at Йе date of its inception in Йis case is the sum of the discounted futцte
flours of the instrument fot еасh period.

The effective intetest tate is applied to Йе gross cartying amount of the Гrпапсiаl instfument. Ctedit_
impaired firrancial assets acquited ot otiginated are subject to ctedit-adjusted effective intetest tates. This tate
applies to Йе аmоrЙеd cost of acquired or originated credrt-rmpЙed assets ftom the date of imtial
recogrrition.

For financial assets Йаt subsequently Ьесоmе ctedrt-impaited, the effective intetest rate is also applied to
amottized cost. If Йе ctedit dsk on а credit-impйed financial asset suЬsеquепф decreases so much йat the
asset ceases to Ье an impaired financial asset, the effective intefest fate is applied to the gross caffylng amount
of Йе financial instrument ftom Йе flext fepoIting petiod.

Тhе calculation of Йе effective interest tate includes transaction costs and fees and amounts paid or received
Йаt ate an integral part of Йе effective interest rate. Ttansaction costs include inctemental costs that are
directly аtШiЬutаЫе to Йе acqЙsition оr issue of а financial asset of Ёability

6.4 AmoЁized cost of financial instrument

The amortized cost of а financial instrument at the end of each reporting penod is calculated as йе
amortized cost of that instnffrrent at the end of Йе ptevious teporting petiod plus/minus amortization, wЫсh
is Йе diffgence beМeen Йе effective interest tate cash flows for йаt teporting pedod and the actual cash
flows teceived or paid during that petiod.

In detcmining аmоtЙаtiоп, Йе cash floчrs of а financial iflstnlmefrt include:

' movement of йе issued/received ptincipal amount;
. interest income of expefrses;

additional commissions received/pad at Йе time of issuing/atttacinga loan (such as commissions for
organlzng and issuing а micocredit, considшing а loan application, opening and servicing а loan
account, etc.) ot issuing а deЫ obligation (fot example, bonds);
оЙеr commissions that ate subject to а tеliаЫе assessmeflt, Йе payment of uzЫсh is а mandatory
condition for issuing а miсtoсtedit / issuing а liability ot will Ье made on а regular basis in accordance
ЙЙ Йе terms оf the agteemerrt.

Interest income and expelrses on financia_l instnrments tecogrrized at initial tecogrrition at cost ate recognized
in йе income statement based оп the actual conttactual tate.

If а financial instrument is determined to hаче а пеw fasr value at rmtial recognition, intetest income or
expense is calculated and recognЙed based on Йе mмket intetest fate used to determine the new fair value
of Йе financial instrцment, which subsequendy becomes Йе effective btetest rate for йаt instrument.

For floating tate financial instflrments, the effective intetest rate fot discounting cash flows is used until йе
next repticing date of Йе floating fate at mafket fates pfiof to the maturity date оf йе financial instrument.

Intetest income and expense on financial instruments whose amortized cost is calculated Ьу discoundng саsh
flows at йе effective intetest fate a.te calculated based on the new cost of йе financial instrrrment at thе
effective intefest fate.

6.5 Financial assets and liabilities

cI as sifr са tion of fiпапсi aI iпs ttum еп ts

Under IFRS 9, financial assets are classified as suЪsequefltly measured:

at аmоrЙеd cost;

at fatr value through other comprehensive income;
at fatr value through pfofit or loss - depending on:
. the Ъusiness model used to mаплgе financial assets;

' charactetistics оf the financial asset related to the сопtfасtuаl cash flows.
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The business model used Ьу thе Otganиation is determined Ьу kgy management personnel and describe
Йе ways in which йе Otganization manages its financial assets in order to genefate cash flours.

Financial aýýets ate measuted at amortized cost when all of the folloйng conditions afe met:

о Тhе business models used Ьу the otganizadon are detetmined Ьу key managemefit personnel and
describe the ways in vzhiсh Йе Organization manages its financial assets in otder to gefletate cash flоvrs.

о Financial assets are measuted at amortized cost vrhеп all of the folloйng conditions ale met:

Саsh flows Йаt ate solely payments of рriпфаl and intetest оп the рriпфаl amolrnt outstanding have the
following features:

. йе ptincipal amount оf the deЬt is йе fair value оf йе financial asset at iniual recognition;
О intetest includes only considcation for the time value of money, fot ctedit dsk in relation to ptincipal

outstanding fot а speciГred period of time, and fоr ойеr notmal risks (eg liquidity) and costs (in particulм
administtative) associated ЙЙ microcredit.

In some cases, Йе time value of mопеу element contains considetadon fot othet risks and costs, i.e. is
modified. Iп this case, Йе Otganization makes а qualitative ot, where apptoptiate, quantitative assessment of
the signiГrcance of the effect оf the modified time value of mопеу element.

Financial assets afe measuted at fair value through ойеt comprehensive income when а11 of йе
fоllойпg conditions afe met:

о йе financial asset is held ййiп а business model whose objective is Ьой to hold to collect contractual
саsh flows and to sell financial assets;

. contfactual terms ptovide fot the teceipt, on specified dates, of cash flоvrs йаt ate solely payments of
prirr.tp"l and intercst on Йе pflnclpal amount outstanding.

Financial aýýets afe measufed at fair чаluе thtough ptofit ot loss if йеу ate acquited in а business model
ЙЙ Йе pufpose of selling and if йеу do not qualiф fоr amordzed cost or fй value йrough other
comprehensive income.

Undg ItrRS 9, financial liabilities ate classified as suЬsеquепф measuted at amottized cost, except
for:

о financial liabilities at fair value thtочф profit or loss;
о financial liabilities йаt arise urhеп а ttansfer of а financial asset does not qualiE/ for detecognition or

urhеп Йе continuing involvement principle is applied;
о financial guffantee agteements;
. obligations to ptovide microcedits at an interest rate belovz the market rate;
о contingent consideration teceived in а business combination.

в usiл еss m odel аs s es srn еп t

An entity evaluates Йе objective of Йе business model in which йе asset is held at thе level of а pottfolio of
financial insttlrrrrents as Йis best reflects йе чzау йе business is managed and йе way infotmation is
ptescnted to management. Тhе analyzed information includes:

о policies and objectives set fot pottfolio maflagement, as well as йе implementadon of йеsе policies in
practice. In particulм, whеЙеr the managemeflt sttategy is focused оп eмning contfactual intetest
income, maintaining а certain intetest fate strucfiшe, ensuting Йаt financial assets meet Йе matutities of
the financial Ёabilities used to finance those assets, ot tealDing саsh flouzs through the sale of assets.

о How йе performance оf йе portfolio is measuted and hоw tыs information is communicated to the
manaýment оf йе Organization.

о Risks affecting йе petfotmance of the business model (and the financial assets held йtь йаt business
model) and hоuz those risks ate managed.

о How pottfolio managffs afe femunefated (fot example, чzhейеt йе temrrncadon is based on thе fй
value of Йоsе assets ot on Йе contfactual саsh floчrs received ftom йе assets).

The ftequency, volume, and timing of sales in past pшiods, the teasons for such sales, and expectations
tegatding futute levels of sales. Howevet, infotmation on sales levels is not consideted in isolation, but

_,(
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as paft оf а single holistic analysis of hоw Йе Otganizadon's stated goal of managing financial assets is
being acЫeved and how cash flows же real|tzed.

Financial assets йаt are held for tading or managed and-whose petfotmance is measured on а fair value basis
are measuted at fair value tfuough ptofit or loss because йеу ate neither held to collect contractual саsh flочrs
not ate йеу held to collect conttactual cash flows. cash flоur agfeement and the sale of Гrnancial assets.

"A.я.sеsslлg g,llethu conttacttti1! citslr ,I/tlш's ate solely рауtпепts of ptiпcipa| апd iпtetest

For йе pufposes of йis meaýuIement, "рdпфа1" is deГrned as the fair value of а financial asset at initial
tecognition. "Intetest" is defined as а consideration for йе time value of money, fot ctedit tisk on рtiпфаl
outstanding ovet а speciГred pciod of time, and fot othet majot tisks and costs associated чziй microlending
(such as liqurdity dsk and administrative costs), and include ptoГrt margin.

In evaluating whеЙеr the contfactual саsh flows are solely payments of рriпфа_l and interest оп the principal
amount outstanding (the "SPPI test'), Йе Entity considets thе contfactual terms of Йе financial instnrment.
ТЫs includes assessing whеthеr the terms of the financial asset's contfact contain any condition that could
change Йе timing of amount of Йе conftact's саsh flows such that Йе financial asset would not meet the
tequirement under analysis.

\ХЪеп conducting ап aýsessment, the Otganization takes into account:

о contingencies йаt may change the timing of amount оf cash flows;
о conditions that hаче а levetage effect (levetage);

о conditions for early fepayment and ptolongation оf thе validity penod;
. tefms йаt limit йе orgarrzation's claims to cash flows ftom certain assets (for example, non-

fecoufse assets);

о conditions йat tesult in а change in consideration fot the time value of mопеу - fot example,
tepticing intcest tates on а pciodic basis.

Тhе Organization has determined Йаt for а portfolio of long-tetm microctedits issued at а fixed intefest Iate,
fоtwЫсh йе Organization hаs the фht to tейsе йе interest tate in Йе event of а change in Йе tеГrпапсiпg
tate set Ьу the Central Bank of the Republic of UzbeНstan, and fot vrЫсh bortouzets have Йе right to eithet
accept йе teйsed Iate ot tepay йе mictocredit at а nominal teduced Ьу princlpal payments and incteased Ьу
acctued but unpaid intetest, Йthочt penalty, the conttactual cash {lows of these mictoctedits are solely
payments of рriпфаl and intetest, since tЫs фht results in а change in Йе interest tate so that interest is а

teimbursement fot йе time чаluе оf money, cedit tisk, other major risks associated йЙ microlending, and
costs associated йй йе рriпфаl temaining outstanding, Thus, thе Organization considets Йеsе
microcredits as microcredits Йth а floating interest fate in its essence.

Gепеtа| рriпсфlеs fot the initial пеаsutепlеflt of frпапсiа] iпstпIIпепts

Financial instnrments (financial assets and financral liabilities) аrе tecognized in Йе accounting tecotds of thе
Organization if Йе Otganizadon becomes а pafty to а contfact with tespect to that financial instflrmerrt.

ýИith the exception оf trade tесеiчаЫеs (not containing а significant financing component) and а financial
asset of financial [ability at fait value thtough ptofit ot loss, financial instruments ate initially recogrrized at
fair value, plus or minus in the case of а Гtпапсiаl asset ot financial liabilrý, Ьу transaction costs that are

ditесф attdbutable to йе acqйsition of а financial asset ot thе issuance of а financial liability. Тhе best
ейdепсе of the fair value оf а Гrnancial instrument at iпiЙl tecogrrition is usually thе transaction price.

Ttade teceivables that do not contain а significant financing component ме measured at initial tecognition at
Йе ttansaction price.

If йе actual contractual tate fot а financial instfument is absent ot deviates significandy ftom thе market rate

for йis фimilш/similаt) instrument at йе date оf its occutrence, Йеп Йе new fait value of the financial
instrument is determined fot its initial recogrrition. \ХЪеtеiп:

о in йе absence of information on matket tates for йis fiпапсrаl instrument (or if thеу cannot Ье
detgmined йth а sufficient degtee of reliabiПry), the actual rate under Йе contract in tespect of tЫs
instrument is subject to comparison ЙЙ matket fates fof transacdons ЙЙ similar/sirnilat financial
instfuments;
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а significant deЙation of the actual tate undet the contfact ftom фе market tate fot this or
апаlоф/similш financial instrument on the date of its occuttence is considered significant. Тhе
decision on materiality is made on йе basis of the ptofessional judgments of tesponsible petsons,
taking into accouflt the content and featutes of Йе relevant transacd,on.

Тhе nevz fair value of а financial instrument at initial recogrrition is determined using а discounted market
interest tate mеЙоd and is the fait value of thе instrument at thе date of inception, i.e. Йе pfesent value of
all future (expected) cash flows on this instrument at the date of its occurrence, discounted at Йе matket
interest rate fot Йis or а similat/similar firrancial instrument. Тhе difference beмeen the actual cost at йе
date of odgin of Йе financial instrument and its neý/ cost, depending оп йе cause of its occuffence, mау Ье
recognized in equiЦ income statement ot othet assets/liabilities of thе Organization.

Тhе market intetest rate for Йis financial instfument ot оЙet analogic/similat financial instruments is
detetmined on the basis of ачаilаЫе internaI and extemal soutces of infotmation, depending оп йе type and
nature of Йе financial instrument, and mау Ье determined/caiculated based on:

о ftom well-knouzn intetest fates publiýhed ot posted in йе information systems wr.r,-rv.cbu.uz (йе
official vrebsite of Йе CBI) ot public auйorities and administrad,on on йе Intetnet;

о ftom йе tefinancing fate оf the cBu for thе cottesponding period.

In patticular, when detcmining the market rate fot colrsumet lendrng agIeements, йе Otganization uses
infotmation published Ьу Йе Centtal Bank of йе Republrc of UzbeНstan on the full cost of consumet ctedit,
detcmining Йе range of market fates as: the uppet limrt of the range is thе consumet loan cost rate and thе
lower limit of the tange is Йе tefinancing tate оf йе Centtal Bank of the Republic of UzbeНstan for the
cottesponding pedod.

Reclassifrcation

Тhе classification оf financial assets does not сhапgе aftеt initial tecogrrition except in thе penod following
the Entity changes its business model for managing financial assets. Ап entity shall teclassiф Гrnancial assets
only if it hаs changed Йе business model used to malrage those financial assets. Such changes ate expected
to Ье ехttеmф rше. Suсh changes should Ье identified Ьу thе top management of йе Organization as а

consequence of extemal ot intetnal changes and should Ье signrficant to фе activities of the Organization
and obvious to external patties. Accotdingly, а сhапgе in йе pulpose of the Organtzaion's business model
can occuI urhеп and опlу when the Otganization begins of ceases to са_ffу out afi actiЙty that is significant in
telation to its operations; for ехаmрlе, in Йе event of an acquisition, disposal or termination Ьу the
Otganйation оf а particulш line of business.

Тhе classification of financial [abilities after initial tecogrrition is not subject to change.

De.tecogn i ti оп of iiп ап ci а I iпýlfrдr]елrý

А financial asset is derecognised only when:

о йе conttactual dфts to the cash flo,ws from йаt financial asset expire, or
о An entity transfers а Гtrrancial asset and the transfer qualifies fot derecognition.

If а financial asset is substantially modifi,ed, the Otganization derecogrrises it and recognizes а new asset,
Critetia fot major modification Тhе otganization detetmines hотш,:

о change in йе сшtепсу of а financial instrument;
о change from а fixed interest tate to а floating interest fate afid йсе vetsa;
. replacement of the dehor.

А financial labi[ty is derecognised only when it is extrnguished, йat is, whеп йе obligation speciГred rn йе
corrtfact is discharged, canceled ot expired.

Тhе tапsfеt of а frпапсiа] aýset Iпеа.пs:

. а tfansfef of conttactual dghts to receive cash flows ftom йat financial asset to anothet pa.tty, ot
о tetaining conttactual riфts to receive cash flows ftom йе financiaI asset uzbile iпсшtiпg contractual

obligations to рау Йose cash to one of mote tефiепts undet the contract.
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ýИhеп transferring а financial asse! the dsks and reuzatds associated Йth holding а financial asset afe assessed.

In tЫs case:

о if йе Entity ttansfets substantially all the dsks and tewatds incidental to ownersыp of а financial
asset, it d*ecognises the financial asset and recognizes sераtаtф as assets ot liabilities those rýhts
and obligations created ot tetained on Йе ffansfet;

о if the Entity retains substantially all the dsks and tewards оf ownetship of the financial asset, it
continues to tecogrrize Йе financial asset;

о if the Entity does not ffansfg or tetain substantially all the dsks and tewatds incidental to ownersыp
of а financial asset, it shall determine uzhethg conttol of the financial asset is retained. And in tЫs
case:
. if Йе Entity does not tetain control, it detecognises Йе financial asset and sepatately tecogrrizes

as an asset or liability Йоsе dghts and obligaaons that are cteated or tetained on transfer;
. if the Entity tetains contro| it continues to tecogrrize thе financial asset to the extent Йаt it

condnues to hаче ап interest in that Гrrrancial asset.

Оп derecognition, the diffetence beмeen the catrying amount of Йе financial asset transfetted to another

ршtу (measuted at the date of detecogrrrtion) arrd йе amount of funds received ot teceivable in exchange fot
йаt asset, less any liabrlitres assumed, is rесоgпЙеd in Йе income statement during thе reporting period.

Significant change irr thе tetms оf а financial liability (regatdless of Йе reasons for Йis change), incl. ап
exchange of obliganons Йth substantially diffмent terms is accounted fot as an extinguisbent of thе old
obligation and йе tecognition of а new one, йЙ the difference between the Мо tecognized in Йе income
statemeflt. Suсh а change is recognDed as significant, in wЫсh thе cuttent discounted value оf саsh flouzs in
accordance йй йе new conditions differs from the cuffent discounted value of the remaining cash flочrs of
the original financialliabiJitybyl/zattbercГtnancingrate set Ьу Йе CenttalBank of Йе Republic of UzbeНstan
ot mofe,

Upon derecogrrition, the diffgence beмeen йе catrying amourrt of а financial liability extbguished ot
ttansferred to апоЙet patty, induding the televant undet-depreciated patt of the actual costs, and the
considention paid fior it is subject to tecognition in thе income statement fot Йе tepotting petiod.

Itпраittпелt

An entity recognizes an ptovision fot expected cedit losses on Йе following financial instrцments not at fait
value йrough ptofit ot loss:

о microcredits to clients;
о deЬt investrnent securities;
. net investrnent in Гшапсiаl leasing
о issued financial guatantee contracts; And
о issued lоап commitments.

Тhе entity tecognizes proЙsions fot expected credit losses at an amount equal to lifetime expected ctedit
losses, except fоt йе following instflrments, for wЫсh Йе amount of the proЙsion wtll Ье equal to 12-mопth
expected ctedit losses:

о deЬt investrnent securides йй low ctedit dsk at йе teporting date; And
о ойеr financial instruments (other than net investments in finance leases) for vrысh ctedit tisk has

not incteased significandy since йеit initial recognition.

Ап entity considets а deЬt security to hаче low ctedit risk if it has а ctedit rating that meets the intetnationally
accepted definition оf an investrnent gtade tating.

12-mопй expected cedit losses afe the pottion of expected credit losses due to default events on а financial
instrument that are possible ЙЙiп 12 months aftet thе tepotting date.
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ц

Estfunate of expected credit lоssеs

Expected credit losses are an estimate of credit losses wфhtеd Ьу the probability of а default occurring. Тhеу
are rated as follows:

for financial assets that afe not credit-impaited at the repotting date: as the present value оf all
expected cash shortfalls (Йаt is, Йе difference beмeen the cash flочrs due to йе Otganization under
the conttact and the cash flours that thе Organization expects to tесеiф;
for financial assets Йаt ate credit-impЙed at Йе tepornng date: as the difference between the gross
carrying amount of Йе assets and thе pfesent чаlче оf estbated futute cash flows;
fot the undravzn portion оf thе loan commitment: as thе ptesent value of the diffetence beмeen thе
contfactual cash flows Йаt ate due to Йе Otganization under Йе contract if йе Ьоrrочrеt exercises
its riфt to а loan and thе cash flows йаt йе Otganization expects to receive if йat loan wete issued;
And
for financial guafantee contfacts: as the present value of expected payments to thе holder оf the
conffact to compensate for а ctedit loss it incuts, less amounts the Otganization expects to recovef.

Res ttll cated fiп апс-iаl as s ets

\ХЪеп Йе tetms of а financial asset a.re tenegotiated or modifi.ed Ьу agteement, of an exrsting financial asset
is replaced Ьу а new one due to firrancial difficulaes of the boroý/et, an assessment is made to detetmine
whеЙеt Йе financial asset should Ье derecognised, and expected credit losses are measuted as follo,ws:

If the expected rcstructuting does not result in Йе derecognition of the exrsting asset, йеп the
expected cash flows ftom the modified financial asset are included in йе calculation of саsh shottfalls
ftom thе existing asset.

If an expected restructuring results in the detecognitron of an existing asset, then Йе expected fait
value of Йе пеw asset is treated as the ultimate cash flovz оf thе existing asset at the time it is
derecogrrised. This amount is rrrcluded in thе calculation of саsh shortfalls on thе exrstrng financial
asset, which are discounted over Йе peiod ftom the expected derecognition date to thе reporting
date using Йе original effective interest fate of Йе existing financia_l asset.

Cte di ьimр aired Iiп ап ci aI as s е t s

At еасh teporting date, Йе Organization assesses financial assets cattied at amortized cost and deЬt financial
assets cartied at fair value thrочф othet comptehensive income to detetmine if they are ctedit-impafued. А
financial asset is "ctedit-impaited" whеп it hаs а default event.

Рtеsепtаtiоп ofptouisions for expected etedit |osses

Ctedit Ioss proЙsion amounts ate ptesented in йе statement of financial position as follo,ws:

financial assets measuted at аmоtЙеd cost as а teducdon of йе gtoss catrying amount of йеsе
aSSetS;

loan commitrnents and financial guafantee cofiftacts: in genera| as а proЙsion;
if thе Гrnancial instrument contains both а саllаЫе and ап unclaimed component, and thе Еппrу is
unable to detetrnine Йе expected ctedit losses on thе committed 1оап commitment sepatately ftom
Йе expected credit losses on the pottion already called (thе originated mictocedit): Тhе Entity
presents аfl aýr.egate loss ptovision fot both compofiefits. Тhе aggregate amount is presented as а
reduction in Йе gross book value of йе claimed part (issued mictoctedit). Any excess оf йе loss
ptovision over thе gtoss cattying amount оf the mictocredit issued is ptesented as а ptovision; And
deЬ.t instnrments measuted at falt value thtough othet comptehensive income: loss proйsion is not
recognized in the statement of financial position because йе carrying amount of thеsе assets is theit
fait value.
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|l7tite-olTs

Microcedits and deЬt securities are subject to write-off (in ршt or in firll) чzhеп thete is no teasonable
expectation оf Йeit tecovery. Typically, this is the case .ш,hеп Йе Otganization determines that йе borrowet
does not have assets or soufces оf income that can genefate sufficient cash flоurs to рау оff thе amounts due
to Ье wdtten оff. However, fot financial assets Йat hаче Ьееп wtitten off, the Otganization mау continue to
carry out deЬt collection actiЙties in accotdance Йth the fecovefy ро[су.

Саsh апd саsll equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalents aIe items that are readily convertible to а certain amount of саsh and are subject
to an insigrrificant change in value. Саsh and cash eqйvalents include all overnight deposits and reverse
teputchase agteements Йth other banks ЙЙ otiginal maturities of up to one business day. Funds that are
testticted from use fot mote thап three months at Йе time of originaaon ме excluded ftom cash and cash
equivalents in ЬоЙ thе statement of financial position and йе statement of cash flows. Cash and cash
equivalents ше carried at amortDed cost because (i) Йеу ate held to collect contractual cash flovrs and these
cash flows fepfesent solely payments of principal and intetest, and (ii) Йеу ate not classified as measured at
cost. fair value thtough profit ot loss. Conditions esИblished solely Ьу law (for ехаmрlе, deЫ-to-equity
convefsion ptovisions iп some corrntries) do not affect the results of thе SPPI test, unless йеу ate included
in the terms of Йе contract and would apply even if the law subsequendy changed.

Pa)zments ot tесфts of саsh ptesented in the statement of саsh flo,ws teptesent Йе transfer of cash and cash
equivalents to Йе Organization, including such amounts accrued or credited to cuffent accounts of йе
Organization's counterparties held йЙ йе Otganization, such as interest income on а loan or рriпфаl
amount collected Ьу debiting Йе client's cuffent account, interest payments or issued loans ctedited to the
client's cuttefit account, teptesenting саsh ot its equivalent ftоm thе point of Йеw of the cfient.

Mictouedits, tпiсrоlоапs, апd пiсtоfrп ап cing sеп,iсеs (tпicroctedit).

Micro loans presented in the statement of financial position include:

о Micocredits measured at аmоtйеd cosu they ше measured rnitially at йir value plus inctemental
ditect transaction costs and Йеп at amorЙed cost using the effective intgest method;

о Mictocredits assessed at FvpL оп а mandatory basis; suсh mictocredits are measrrred at fait value
йй changes in йeit value immеdiаtф recognized in рюfit ot loss; And

о finance lease teceivables.

ýИhеп ап entity acquires а financial asset and simultaneously entcs into an agteement to resell Йе asset (ot а
substantially similar asset) at а fixed price at а futute date, the agreement is accounted fot as а loan or advance
and Йе undedying asset is not recognized rn Йе financial statements of Йе entity.

Collateпl rcceived {ot поп-р aJanent.

Collateral received for non-payment fepfesefits financial and non-financial assets teceived Ьу йе Otganization
in Йе settlement of ovetdue microcredits. These assets afe initially recogrrized at йir value upon rесфt and
included in ptopetty, plant and equipment, оЙеr financial assets, ifivestment pfopeIty or inventoties чriЙin
otheI assets, depending on theit паtцtе and the Otganization's intention to collect йоsе assets, and ate
subsequendy remeasuted and accounted for in accotdance wiй accounting policies for йеsе categories of
aSsets.

If thе acqrпsition of collateral fot non-payment (esults in Йе acqursition of control of the business, йе
business combination is accounted fot using йе acqйsition mейоd, йй the fй value оf thе setded
miuocredits being thе cost of йе acquisition, Fot shates held in default, йе accoundng policy fot associates
is applied whеп Йе Entity acquites significant influence but does not acquire conftol.

Рtорелqr апd equiplnent

Ptoperty, plant and equipment ate cattied at cost of at fevalued amounts as described below, less accumulated
depteciation and ptoйsion fot impйment, if any.

Gains and losses Mising from Йе disposal of рrореrtу, plant and equipment ate determined оп the basis оf
theit tesidual value and ate included in opetating ец)епsеs in йе statement of comprehensive income.
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Repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the ýtatement of comptehensive income чrhеп they are
incurred.

Constrrrction in ptogtess is carried at cost less any ptovision fot impairment.

Upon completion of construction, Йе assets afe ftansfeffed to рrореrtу, plant and equrpment and ate
recorded at Йeir carrying amount at thе time of transfet. Construction in ptogress is not subject to
depreciation until Йе asset is put into operation.

Intangible asýets

The Otganization's intangible assets, othet than goodwill, have а finite useful life and primatily include
capitalized sofМare as well as intangible assets acquited as а result of а business combination (fot ехаmрlе,
customer base and Ыапd паmе). Acqufted and recognized iпtапgrЫе assetý are capitalzed on the basis оf the
costs incuцed to acquire апd implement those assets. Subsequent to initral recognition, iпtапgiЫе assets ate
caried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. IntangiЫe assets
ate amottized оп а straight-line basis and assessed for impЙment whеп йеrе is an indication that these assets
may Ье impaired.

Depteciaion

Depreciation of an item оf Гжеd assets begins ftom йе moment it is put into operation. Depteciation is
charged on а sttaiфt-line basis as а pefcentage of the usefirl Iife of assets:

о Buildings - 5%;
о Office and computer equipment - 15о/о - 40оh;
о Vehicles - 20%;

о Other fixed assets - 15"/о;

Land has ап unlimited usefi:l life and is not subject to depteciation.

At Йе end of its useful life, thе tesidual чаluе оf an asset is Йе estimated amount йаt йе Organization would
crrrrendy receive if Йе asset were sold, less the estimated costs of disposal, if the condruon and age of йе
asset wete consistent Йth Йе age and condition that йе asset would Ье in end of usefi;l life. The tesidual
value of assets and their useful lives are rечiечrеd and, if necessary, adjusted at йе end of the repotting pedod.

FiпапсiаI оЬIРаtiопs

The entity classifi,es its financial liabilities, othet йап financial guafantees and microqedit liabilities, as
measuted at amorйed cost of FVPL.

Dеrесоgпitiоп of frпапсiаl lia bilities

Financial liabiiities ate derecognized чrhеп thеу are extinguished (i.e. чzhеп an obligation specified in the
contract is satisfied ot terminated, ot Йе period fot its performance expfues).

FiпапсiаI liabilities categotized as at fait value thtough рюfrt ot loss

Ап entity may designate certain liabilities as measured at fait value йtough profit or loss оп initial recognition.
Gains and losses on such liabilities afe pfesented in ptofit ot loss, except fot the amount оf changes in fait
value Йаt ate attdbutable to changes in Йе credit dsk оf Йе liability (defined as the amount that is not
attributaЫe to changes in market conditions Йаt give rise to market risk), that is recognйed in other
comptehensive iпсоmе and is not subsequently teclassifi.ed to ptofit or loss. TЫs is possible if sчсh а
tepresentadon does not cfeate ot exacetbate ап accounting mismatch. In йis case, gains and losses
attributaЫe to changes in the liability's ctedit risk ate also tecognized rn ptofit or loss.

Воrоwiпgs ftоп othe,t banks

Amounts due to banks ше recotded from йе moment when funds of othef assets ate issued Ьу йе
Otganization Ьу соrrпtецраrtу banks. Due to banks teptesent non-derivative financial liabilities and ме catried
at amortized cost of F'VPL.
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Otllet boпo*iog".

Othet bottowings atttacted Ьу Йе Organization in Йе financial markets, as uzеll as ttade finance transacdons.
ОЙш bortourings ate catded at amortized cost of FVPL.

L-o,tllttlittпeп ts to ptouidiпg mictoctedi t.

The organization issues obligations to provide mictoctedits. Such obligations are itrечосаЫе obligations oI
obligations Йаt can only Ье ЙЙdrаvrп in tesponse to material negative changes. Such ]rabilities are initially
caried out at fЙ value, usually suppotted Ьу the amorrnt of temuneration received. This amount is amortized
using Йе straight-line meЙod during Йе term of thе obligation, except for the obligation to ptovide
mictoctedits, if Йеtе is а ptobability йаt йе Otgantzaionчrill conclude а specific mictoctedit agreement and
will not plan to implement Йе mictoctedit Йthiп а short period after its ptovision; Such commission income
related to Йе obligation to рrоЙdе migocedits is accounted for as defetted income and is included in йе
book value of Йе micoctedit at irrraal tecognition. At thе end оf each teporting period, the liability is
measuted as (i) thе unamortDed balance of йе amount at ifitlal recognition plus (ф the amount of йе
contingent reserve determined on Йе basis of the expected ctedit loss model, if the obligation is not to extend
microcredit at an interest rate below the market fate, then the amount of the obligation is equal to Йе Ыghеt
of the Мо amounts. Тhе book value оf obligations to ptovide mictocredits is а liabdrty. Fot conftacts йаt
include а mictoctedit and ап unused Jiability, if йе Organizad,on cannot sераfаtф identiý, expected credit
losses fot the unused microcredit component and for Йе microcredit component, the expected credit losses
on the unused liabiJity ate tecogrrized togeйet йй йе mictogedit loss proйsion. Expected credit losses in
the amount of excess of total ецlесtеd ctedit losses over йе gtoss book value of а microcredit ate recognized
as а liability.

Settlements with suppliets апd othet accounts рауаhIе
Trade and othet payables ассrче when Йе countelparГy has fulfilled its conttactual obligations and are catried
out at amoldzed cost.

Ditidends

Dividends are recognized as а liabilrty and deducted ftom equity at йе end of the teporting period only if
they ate declated befote ot on Йе end of йе tepotting penod. Information about diйdends is disclosed in а
note on events occurting after Йе end of the repotting petiod if йеу were declated aftet йе end of thе
reporting petiod. Payment of diЙdends and othet distribution of profits is carried out оп the basis of the net
profit of the cuffent yefi accotding to financial statements ptepated in accotdance wiЙ the legislation of йе
Republic of UzbeНstan.

Aftеt apptoval at Йе gencal meeting оf раrtiфапts, diЙdends ate teflected in thе financial statements as а
distdbution оf ptofits.

rnterest iпсоrпе апd ехрепsе calculated using the effectil,e intetest пethod.

Interest income and expense on all dеЬt instruments measured at amortЙed cost and measured at fair value
tЪ-tоugh оthш comptehensive income же recognized on ап ассruаl basis using thе effective intetest mейоd.
ТЫs calculation indudes in interest income and expenses all fees and сhшgеs paid ot teceived Ьемееп parties
to the contract Йаt are an Йtegtal patt of Йе effective intetest Iate, tJansactiofl costs, and all othet ptemiums
ot discounts.

Commissions attributable to thе effective interest tate include fees teceived ot paid Ьу an entity in connection
йй thе cteadon or acquisition of а financial asset ot йе issuance of а firrancial liability (fоt ехаmрlе, fees for
assessing crediMotthiness, evaluating ot accounting for guatantees ot collateral, fot setding йе terms of ап
instnrment, and fot ttansaction рtосеssiпф.

Тhе Otganization does not classiýl microcredit liabiПty as а financial liability at fait value thtough profit ot
loss.

For originated ot acqufued ctedit-impated financial assets, Йе effective intеtest tate is the fate that discounts
expected саsh flouzs (including initial expected credit losses) to fait value at initial tecognrtion (usually thе
acquisition price). As а tesult, Йе effective interest is ctedit-adjusted.
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(iп thousands of UZS)

Ъаlапсе sheet asset and liaЪility metlrod fоr all tax losses слrry
the tax Ъаsе оf assets and liaЪilities and their саrцппg amounts

Intetest income is calculated Ьу applying the effective intetest Iate to Йе gtoss carrying amount of financial
assets ойеr йап:

о financial assets that hаче Ьесоmе impaited (stage 3) and for whiсh interest income is calculated Ьу
applyflg Йе effective intgest fate to Йeir amorЙed cost (less proЙsion fot expected credit losses);

о credit-impaired financial assets оdфаtеd or acquited fot wысh thе otiginal credit-adjusted effective
intetest tate is applied to amorЙed cost.

Fее апd соmrпissiоп iпсоmе апd ехрепsеs

Fее and commission income and expenses Йаt afe ап integtal patt оf the effective inteIest Iate of the financial
asset of ЁabiЁty ме included in the effective interest rate calculadon.

А conttact ЙЙ а customef that tesults in Йе recognitron of а financial instrument in Йе financial statements
of an Entity mау Ье partly Йthiп йе scope of IFRS 9 and pardy ййiп йе scope оf IFRS 15. In йis case,
the Entity fust applies Йе tequitements of IFRS 9 to isolate and account fot the patt of the contract Йаt is
ййiп йе scope of IFRS 9 and йеп applies IFRS 15 to йе remainder.

Other iпtеrеst iпсоmе апd ехрепsеs.

Other intetest income and expense tepfesent interest income and expense on deЬt instruments measrrted at
FVPL and ate tecognDed оп an ассruаl basis using а nominal intefeýt fate.

Тахаtiоп

Income tax expense/fecovery includes cuftent and deferred taxes and is recognized in the statement of
comptehensive income, Taxation expenses are teflected in the financial statemefits in accotdance йth thе
tequitements of Йе cuttent lфslаtiоп of the Republic of UzbeНstan. Current tax pa}Tnentý ate calculated on
the basis of tахаЫе income fot Йе year using income tax rates in effect during thе teporting period.

Curent tax amounts are funds рауаЫе to Йе budget ot tefunded ftom the budget in connection йй taxable
ptofits or losses of the current or ptevious perbd. If financial statements ate permiшed to Ье issued рrюr to
Йе filing of Йе televant tax tetutns, Йе tax amounts repotted Йetein ate based оп estimates.

Deferred income tax is calculated using thе
forward and temponry differences Ъеtwееп
fоr financial fepofting pu{poses.

Deferted tax amourrts are measuted at tax fates фat ate effective at Йе end of Йе reporting pedod or Йаt
are expected to аррlу during thе pedod of reversal оf tempotary differences or use of tax loss смry forwшds.
Defcted tax assets and ]rabi]ities ate offset against each other if there is а legally епfоtсеаЫе right to offset
cuffent tax assets and liabilities. Defeшed tax assets fot deductiЫe temporмy diffetences and tax losses ate
tecognized to Йе extent Йаt it is рrоЬаЫе Йat sufficient taxable ptoГrt urill Ье available against which thе
deductions can Ье utilised. Management's judgment is tequhed to determine the amount of defetred tax assets
Йat сап Ье tecogrrized in Йе financial sИtements based on thе likely timing and amount of futute taxable
income and future tax planning sftаtфеs.

In addition, Йе Repub[c of UzbeНstan hаs various operating taxes that apply to йе Organization. Тhеsе
taxes ate tecognized iп Йе statement of comptehensive income as paft of opetating expenses..

Of{setting

Financial assets and liabilitres are offset and thе net pfesent value repotted in the statement of financial
position only when Йеrе is а statutory dфt to offset Йе tecognЙed amoufits and Йсе is an intention to
either offset or rea|be Йе asset and settle thе liability simultaneously. Тhе right to set off (а) must not Ье
contingent on а future event and ф) must Ье enforceable in all of the folloчzing cfucumstances: (i) in йе
otdinary coufse of business, @) in йе event of а default, and (iф in йе event of insolvency or banktuptry.
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21
(iп thousands of UZS)

Etnployee benefrts апd social secuity сопttiЬutiопs

Оп the tertitory оf the Republic of UzbeНstan, Йе Organization makes deductions for the unified social tax.
These deductions are also tecotded on an accrual basis. Тhе unified social tax includes contributions to the
Pension Fund. Тhе Otganization does not hаче its ouzn pension scheme. Paytoll expefrses, contributions to
йе state pension fund and йе social insurance fund, paid аппча1 leave and sick leave, bonuses and non-
monetafy ЬепеГrts ate accrued as Йе relevant services ate rendeted Ьу йе employees of йе Organization.

Segпent Iпfоtтпаiоп

Opetating segments are identified based on internal tepotting of the OrganDadon's compofiefits, reviewed
tegularly Ьу thе cЫef opetating decision maket to allocate tesoutces to the segments and evaluate йеit
performance.

An entity measufes fepoItable segment infotmation in accordance йй IFRS. А tероrtаЫе opetating segment
is identiгred .rп'hеп one of йе follovzing quantitative requirements is met:

о its fevenue from sales to extetnal customels and ftom ttansacdons йth ойш segments is at least 10
pffcent of Йе total fevenue - external and intemal - of а11 opetating segments; of

о йе absolute measure оf profit ot loss is not less than 10 pefcent of the Ыghet of (i) йе combined
profit of all opetating segments Йаt did not show а loss, and (ii) thе combbed loss оf all opetating
segments that showed а loss; ot

о its assets fepfesent at least 10 petcent of йе total assets of all operating segments.
о its assets and liabilities are at least 10 petcent oftotal capital.

If Йе total extemal sales revenue shoчrn Ьу thе operating segments is less Йап 75 pccent of Йе entity's
tevenue, additional operating segmentý are identified as reportable (even if thеу do not meet thе quantitative
criteria above) until the repotted segments at least 75 реt cent of the Organization's tevenue чrill Ье rncluded.

Foteign сuffепсу

Ttansactions in foteign cuttencies are initially ttanslated into the functional cuIfency at the ехсhапgе fate оf
thе CBU in effect on the date of the ttansaction. Gains and losses atising ftom thе translation of ttansactions
in foteign cuttencies are tecognized in the statement оf comprehensive iпсоmе as gains less losses ftom
foreign cuffency ftanslation. Non-monetary items Йat ate measured at cost in а foteign cufrency afe ttanslated
at thе ехсhапgе tate оf the Centtal Bank of the Republic of UzbeНstan in effect on Йе date of Йе transaction.
Non-monetary items measuted at fair value lrr а forcign cuffency ate tfanslated at йе tate of exchange ruling
at the date йе fй value was detetmined.

At the date of Йе financial statements, Йе assets and liabiliaes оf the Organization urhose functional cuffency
is diffшent ftom the ptesentation сlшепсу оf the OtganbaiotT afe tfanslated into UZS at the ехсhапgе tate
at thе repoting date, and Йeit income statements ate ttanslated at the чreighted avcage annual rate. Тhе
exchange diffetences atising on such translation же tecogMzed in other comprehensive income. Оп disposal
of а subsidiary ot associate whose firnctional cuttency is diffetent from йе Entity's presentadon currenry, йе
total amount tecogrrized iп оЙеr comptehensive income atftibutable to Йаt enaty is teclassified ftom other
comptehensive income to profit ot loss for йе reporting period.
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Nofes to fiпапсiаl sfafe/nenfs for the уеаr ended 31 DесеmЬеr 2024

Gash and cash equavalents

22
(iп thausands of UZS)

31 DесеmЬеr
2024

31 DесеmЬеr
2023

Cash and cash equivalents mеаsurеd at аmогtizеd cost
Total cash апd cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents measuted at amotized cost

31 DесеmЬеr 31
2а24

December
2023

cash оп hand
ваlапсеs оп сurrепt accounts iп оthеr banks
Time deposits in оthеr banks placed fоr а per

рrочisiоп fог сгеdit losses

449 302 798 364
3 553 031 1 924 391

Time deposits in other banks placed for а реriоd of up to 90 days - 15 857 о84

ц
760 59 370

The tаЫе below ptovides an analysis of the credit qo"lity оf cash and cash equivalents measuted at amortized
cost based оп ctedit tatings as at 31 Decembet 2024, ТЬе cmtylng amount оf cash and cash equivalents
balances as at 31 Decembet 2024 п йе table Ьеlочz also feptesents thе Otganization's maximum exposuIe
to ctedit risk on these assets:

ц

Average credit High credit
risk risk Total

Total cash and cash equivalents measured at amoЁized cost 1 8 520 469

цl

Balances on сurrепt accounts in оthеr banks 2 830 417 722 614 3 553 031
provision fог сrеdit losses
Total cash and cash equivalents measured at amoЁized cost,
excluding cash

6 133

2 824 284

29 35 760

692 987 3 517 271ц

-l

Тhе tаЫе below ptoЙdes an analysis of Йе credit qoulity of cash and cash equivalents measuted at amottized
cost based on ctedit ntings as аtЗl DесеmЬеr 2023.

Average High credit
credit risk risk Total

Balances оп счrrепt accounts iп оthеr banks
Time deposits in оthеr banks placed fоr а period of up to 90 days

1 784 765
1 5 857 084

1 39 626 1 924 391
- 15 857 084

provision fоr сrеdit losses (44 583) (14 787\ (59 370)ц-

Total cash and cash equivalents mеаsчrеd at amoЁized cost,
excluding cash 1 7 597 266 1 24 839 17 722 105

Тhе table below ptoйdes а teconciliation of openlng balances of йе provision fot expected ctedit losses
(ECL) for cuffeflt accounts ЙЙ othet banks carrjed at amortized cost, Ыоkеп down Ьу appropriate category.

ECL for 12
months Total

Balance as of 01 January 2023 7,t60 7 160

Provisioning fоr credit losses 52 210 52 210

Balance as of 31 December 2023 59 370 59 370

Provisioning for credit losses (23 610) (23 610)

Balance as of 31 DесеmЬеr 2024 35 760 35 760

Е
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FE кМlКRоМоLlYд IдSНк'LоТI одS/SСRЕDIЪ) LLC МFо
Nofes ta fiпапсiаl sfafemenfs for the уеаr ended 31 DесеmЬеr 2024

Microcredits

23
(iп thousands of UZS)

31 December
2024

31 DесеmЬеr
2023

мiсrосrеdits valued at amortized cost 88 531 286 49 177 501

Total microcredits 88 531 286 49 177 501

Loans and advanceý to customers measuted at amortized cost

31 DесеmЬеr
2024

31 December
2023

lndivid uaIs
lndividual епtгерrепеurs

r l +gъ +zB
57 872 129
21 217 814

2 825 в52
з4 389 61 2
,1з 355 1 18al entities

provisioninq fоr сrеdit losses 20551 1 39з 081

TotaI microcredits mеаsчrеd at amortized cost 88 531 286 49 1 77 501

The tables below ptovide an analysis оf Йе ctedit quality oГmicrocredits measuted at аmоrtйеd cost proйded
Ьу the Organization as at 31 Decemb et 2024. The analysis of the credit qo"lity of microшedits ptesented in
the tables Ьеlоuz is based on the bottovrer ctedit quality scale developed Ьу йе Otganization.

Low credit risk
Ачеrаgе credit risk
High сгеdit risk
Defaulted assets

85 240 612
3 625 96;

1 54з 25;
1 76 590

85 240 612
3 625 963
1 543 256

1 76 590

Total gross book value of microcredits 85 240 612 3 625 963 1 719 846 90 586 421

Provisioning for credit losses (503 2й) (953 595) (598 336) (2 055 ,l35)

TotaI microcredits 84 737 408 2 672 368 1 121 510 88 531 286

Тhе tables Ьеlоuz ptovide an analysis of Йе gedit quality of microctedits measuted at amortized cost ptoйded
Ьу the Otganization as of 31 Decembet 202З. Тhе analysis of йе credit qrr"lity оf mictoctedits presented in
the tables below is based on the scale of borroтx,,et ctedit quality developed Ьу йе Otganizaion.

Minimum credit risk
Low credit risk
Ачеrаgе credit risk
High credit risk
DefauIted assets

33 122
47 349 972

1 339 69;
1 501 11;

346 680

33 122
47 349 972

1 339 692
1501 ,1 16

346 680

Total gross book value of microcredib 47 383 094 ,t 3з9 692 1 847 796 5о 57о 582
рrочisiопaпq fоr credit losses 81 722) (233 443) (377 916) (1 393 081

Total microcredits 46 601 372 1 106 249 1 469 880 49 177 501

Mictocredits wete provided to indiйduals and legal entities, tesidents of thе Republic of UzbeНstan.
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Nоtеs to fiпапсiаl sfafemenfs for the уеаr ended 31 December 2024

24
(iп thousands of UZS)

Analysis of Йе movement of thе provisions fot ctedit losses fоr 2024 for loans to customefs measuted at
amordzed cost:

Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Total

Balance as of 31 December 2023
Тrапsfег to Stage1
Тrапsfеr to Stage2
Тrапsfеr to Stage3

Net expense frоm сгеаtiоп/(rеstоrаtiоп) of сrеdit loss
provisions within опе stage
- including пеw lоапs issued

781 722
230

(66 079)
(23 644)

(189 025)

з43 633

233 443

66 079
(17 805)

671 878

484 599

377 9,1б
(230)

41 449

179 201

1 393 08,t

662 054

283 620 1 111 852

Balance as of 31 DесеmЬеr 2024 503 204 953 595 598 336 2 055 1 35

Information on cedit q,rrlity for micoctedits as of 31 December 2024 is as follows:

Loans to legal Loans to Loans to individual
entities individuals епtrерrепечв Total

Not очеrduе

Overdue;

- with а payment delay of less than 30 days
- wath рауmепt delay fоr а реriоd of 30 to g0

days
- with payment delay fоr а реriоd of 90 to

1 80 days
- with а payment delay of mоrе than 180
days

15 90,1 829

3 774 690

954 266

524 848

62 181

10 51в 759

922 4а1

28 074

27 244

45 379 960

9 94,1 469

,1 538 610

897 681

114 409

7,1 800 548

14 бз8 560

2 520 950

1 449 773

,176 590

Е
Total gross book чаlче of microcredits 21 217 814 1 1 496 478 57 872 129 90 586 42,|

provisioninq fоr сrеdit losses

Total microcredits

584 069 891

20 633 745 1 1 405 587

1 зв0 17 055 1 35

56 491 954 88 531 286

Information on credit quality fоt microcedits as оf 31 December 202З is as follows:

Loans to legal
entities

Loans to Loans to individual
individuals епtrерrепеч rs Total

_r

Not очеrdче

Очеrduе;

- with а payment delay of less than 30 days
- with payment delay fоr а реriоd of 30 to 90
days
- with payment delay fоr а реriоd of 90 to

1 80 days
- with а payment delay of mоrе than 180
days

1 0 803 008

1 632 583

327 223

556 543

35 761

2 223 389

401 ,135

97 619

76 585

27 124

29 632 7з1

3 563 113

1 25 в55

1 006 340

61 572

42 659 128

5 596 831

550 697

1 639 468

124 458

Total gross book чаIче of microcredits 13 355 118

Рrочisiопiпg fоr credit losses (455 090)

2 825 852
(128 666)

34 389 612
(809 325)

50 570 582
(1 393 081)

Total miсrосrеdits 1 2 900 028 2 697 186 33 580 287 49 177 501
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25
(iп thousands of UZS)

Fixed assets and intangible assets

Below is information on Йе movement оf fixed assets and intangible assets as of 31 Decemb et 2024:

office and
computer

Residual чаlче as of 31 December
2023
lnitialcosf
Ваlапсе as of 31 DесеmЬеr 2023

1 393 614

1 626 364
1 116 55,t

6 690 950

7 277 769
5 029 222

8 084 564

8 904 {33
6 145 773

3 931

5 861

8 088 495

8 909 994
6 145 773Recei

Balance as of 31 DесеmЬеr 2024 2 742 915 1 2 306 991 1 5 049 906 5 861 1 5 055 767
Дсс u m u lated de рrесiаtiоп
Residual value at 31 DесеmЬеr
2023 232 750 586 81 9 81 9 569 1 930 821 499
Depreciation deductions 570 620 531 471 1 102 09l ,t 175 1 103 266
Balance as of 31 December 2024 803 370 1 118 290 1 921 660 3 105 1 924 765
Residual value as of 31 December
2024 1 939 545 11 188 701 13 1 28 246 2756 13 131 002

Below is information on Йе movement оf fixed assets and intangible assets as of 31 December 202З:

office and
соm puter Right-of_use

aSSets
Total fixed

aSSets
lntang ible

assets

Residual value as of 01 January 2023
lnitialcosf
Ваlапсе as of 01 January 2023

uipment

696 671

757 547
868 817

3 773 382

4 024 941
3 252 828

4 470 053

4 782 488
4 121 645

Total

4 470 053

4 782 488
4 127 506

Ваlапсе as of 31 December 2024
5 s6;

1 626 364 7 277 769 8 904 133 5 861 8 909 994
Дссum u lated dерrесiаtiоп

Residual чаlче as of 01 Jапчаry 2023 60 876
171 874

251 559
335 260

31 2 435
507 1 34

312 435
509 064ation deductions

ВаIапсе as of 31 DесеmЬеr 2024

1 930

232 750 586 81 9 81 9 569 1 930 821 499
Residual value as of 31 DесеmЬеr
2024 1 393 614 6 690 950 8 084 564 3 93,t 8 088 495

{о other assets

31 DесеmЬеr 31
2024

DесеmЬеr
2023

oth er п о n -fi п а п ci al assefs
Рrерауmепt fоr sегчiсеs

Total other поп-fiпапсiаl assets

Ргерауmепt fоr equipment and goods 10 790 7 799
3 594 209

3 6,t7 309

225 026

273 909
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FЕ KMIKROMOL'YA IASHKILOTI одS/SсRЕDIЪ) LLC МFо
Nofes to fiпапсiаl sfafemenfs far the уеаr ended 31 DесеmЬеr 2024

{ { Other borrowings

Other Ъorrowings afe pfesented as follows:

31 DесеmЬеr
2024

26
(iп thousands of UZS)

31 DесеmЬеr
2023

ЕFА FINANCIAL lNSTlTUTloNS DEBT FUND ртЕ. LTD
вluеоrсhагd
lNECOBANK
ЕмF (Ео)
CENTRAL ASIA lMPAcT FUND, lNC
l.D. lnspiring Pevelopment GmbH

14 511 878
13610202
9 475 385
7 396 089
5 165 093
2 687 202

12 214 827

12 326 о5;

Total other Ьоrrоwiпgs 52 845 849 24 540 880

12 other Iiabilities

3'l DесеmЬеr
2024

31 December
2023

other fi папсiаl liabilities
Ассrчеd expenses fог payment of rеmчпеrаtiоп to регsоппе!
Fоr inventory items and sегчiсеs
Hedging liabilities
Fiпапсе lease liabilities

347 з12
1 218 991
2 696 446

1 1 945 676

203 952
350 1 66

7 097 774

Total other financial liabilities ,t б 208 425 7 651 892

oth er поп-fi папсiаl li abi lities
Taxes payable, excluding iпсоmе tax
Dеfеrrеd commission income

217 715
6 947

з52
5 220

Total оthеr non-financial- liabil ities 224 662 5 572

Total IiabiIities ,l б 433 087 7 657 464

{3 Authorized Gapital

The auйorized and paid-up authotized capital of the Otgantzaionis 45 358 669 thousand UZS.

Тhе audited statutofy firrancial statements of the OtganDation are the basis fot Йе distribution of ptofits and
ойс apptoptiations. Тhе legislation of UzbeНstan defines the basis of drstnbutron as tetained eatnings.

Iл2024 апd2O2З, йе Company drd not declate апу dividends.
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FE KM|KROMOL|Yд ТдSНКlLог/ OAS/SCREDIЪ LLC МFо
Nofes to fiпапсiаl sfafemenfs for the уеаr епdеd 31 DесеmЬеr 2а24

14 lnterest iпсоmе and expenses

27
(iп thousands of UZS)

Fоr the уеаr
ended 31

December 2024

Fоr the уеаr
ended 31

DесеmЬеr 2023

lnterest iпсоmе calculated at the effective inferesf rate
Cash and cash equivalents
мiсrосrеdits

406 471
29 620 5з2

5 538
14 02,1 1 98

Total interest income calculated at the effective interest rаtе 30 027 003 14 026 736

other interest iпсоmе
оthеr assets 92 569
Total оthеr interest iпсоmе 92 569

Inferesf expenses calculated using the effective inferest rate
lnterest expenses оп Ьоrгоwiпgs
мiсrосrеdits

5 326 553
158 883

714 584_

TotaI interest ех ses calculated us the effective interest rate

Oth еr i пtе rest expenses
Lease liability
оthеr liabilities

1 448 752 652 552
3 266

Total other interest ех
Net interest iпсоmе

1 448 752 655 818
23 185 384 1 2 656 334

{5 Fee and commission iпсоmе and expenses

Fоr the уеаr ended
31 December 2024

Fоr the уеаr ended
31 DесеmЬеr 2023

Соmmissfоп expenses
тrапsасtiопs with Ьапk саrds
commission costs йth сrеdit institutions
Оthеr commisslon and sегч!се expenses

614 87 4

1 096 089

344 272
33 570

384 967

Total commission 1 710 963

Net соmmissiоп income (1 710 963)

762 809

(762 809)

{6 Net gain(loss) from foreign счrrепсу transactions and foreign Gчrrепсу
lъчаlчаtiоп

Fоr the уеаr ended
31 DесеmЬеr 2024

Fоr the уеаr ended
31 DесеmЬеr 2023

l п соm d (expenses) from fo rei gп с u rrеп су tra п sacfions ап d reval uati о п
lпсоmе frоm fоrеigп сurrепсу transactions and rечаluаtiоп - Оthег
Expenses fгоm fогеigп сurгепсу transactions and гечаluаtiоп - Оthеr

897 348
(1 527 14з)

829 1 05
(958 047|_

Expenses frоm fогеigп счrrепсу transactions and revaluation- Hedging (2 620 1З0)
Net income/(expenses) frоm foreign счrrепсу transactions апd
revaluation 3 249 925
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InJanuary 2024,thе Соmрапу enteted into а transaction Йth MF"X to putchase поп-dеliчеrаЫе F"X forwards
in ordеt to pfotect against the dsk оf devaluation, specifically to hedge pdncipal liabilities on the follovring
loans:

Repayment dates and amounts of principal, USD
Lender Loan аmочпt, USD

23.10.2024 23.01 .2025 23.04.2025 23.07,2025

ЕFА Grоuр 1 500 000 375 000 375 000 375 000 375 000

Lепdеr Loan аmочпt, USD
Repayment dates and amounts of рriпсiраl, USD

11.12.2024 12.03.2025 11.06.2025 10,09.2025 10.1 2.2025

-ц

АV Frопtiеrs 500 000 1 00 000 1 00 000 100 000 1 00 000 1 00 000

The amorrnt and maturity date оf еасh non-delivetable forwatd stdcdy corresponds to the amounts and dates
of еасh repayment of Йе pdncipal on Йе аЬоче loans. Thus, йе Otganization concluded only 9 поп-
dеliчшаЫе сuffепсу forwards Йth йе following charactetistics:

Repayment date Счrrепсу Amount, USD Fоrwаrd rate Loan repayment hedge

23j0.2024

11.12.2024

11.12.2024

12.03.2025

23.0,| .2025

1 1.06.2025

23.07.2025

10.09.2025

10.1 2.2025

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

375 000

1 00 000

375 000

1 00 000

з75 000

1 00 000

375 000

1 00 000

1 00 000

14 118,35

14 415,37

14 590,77

14 928,56

15 2,15,08

1 5 574,16

15 886,68

,16 
24,1 ,68

16 946,35

ЕFА Gгоuр

AV Fгопtiеrs

ЕFА Gгоuр

AV Frопtiеrs

ЕFА Grоuр

АV Frопtiеrs

ЕFА Grоuр

AV Frопtiеrs

АV Frопtiегs

Тhе prrrpose of Йе ршсhаsе оf forwatds ý/as to maintain йе open foteign ехсhапgе position of the
Otganization ЙЙifl Йе established limits. Iп 2024, expenses on the fotward ftansactions mentioned
amounted to 2 620 130 thousand UZS - Йis amount is included in the total amount оf expenses оп foreign
cuffency transactions and from Йе revaluation of foreigrr cuffency wЫсh amounted to З 249 925 thousand
UZS.

Il

-

,Ц



FE KMLKROMOL|YA TASH'(/LOTI одS/SсRЕDIЪ) LLC MFO
Nofes to fiпапсiаl sfafemenfs for the уеаr ended 31 DесеmЬеr 2024

17 Administrative and other operating ехрепsеs

29
(iп thousands of UZS)

Fоr the уеаr ended
31 DесеmЬеr 2024

Fоr the уеаr ended
31 DесеmЬеr 2023

Salary апd bonuses
Unified social payment
Other employee benefits

8 362 625
807 1 29
39 765

4 224 765
415 734
44 905

реrsоппеl costs 9 209 519 4 685 404

professional sегчiсеs
Тrачеl expenses
Dерrесiаtiоп
Rераir
Оthеr taxes, excluding income tax
Adveгtising
Sесчriý
Stationery
соппесtiоп
Fines and penalties
Rерrеsепtаtiоп expenses
lпsurапсе
utilities
Rent
МеmЬеrshiр fees
Vehicle maintenance expenses
Other

2 795 900
1 225 992
1 103 266

888 5,14

707 497
407 940
211 423
211 160
1 75 345
121 988
120 145
61 930
43 883
35 907
20 з97
6 ,109

27 055

1 427 337
556 237
509 064
462 773
11 809

209 4з8
77 991
57 443
57 286

116 542
29 135
14 880

26 ,l55

1 39 27;
Total other operating ехрепsеs 8 164 451 3 696 910
Total реrsоппеl and other operating expenses 1 7 373 970 8 382 314

{8 lпсоmе tax expense

Сопропепts of iпсоmе tax ехрепsе

Income tax savings include the fоllочriпg components

Fоr the уеаr Fоr the уеаr
ended 3{ ended 31

December 2024 DесеmЬеr 2023

Сurrепt income tax expenses
Dеfеrrеd taxation

3 462
(26 011)

13 367
(18 943)п\

lncome tax ехрепзоs for the year l22 ilgl (5 575)

Reconciliation of tax ехрепsе апd ptofrt ot loss multiplied Ьу йе applicable tax tate

Тhе income tax tate applicable to moýt of йе Organization's ptofits is cotporate income tax [.5 percent).

Below is а comparison of theotetical tax ец)епsеs чziй actual tax expenses:

Rесочеrеd /
31 December (charged) to profit 31 December

2024 and loss ассочпъ 2023

Тах effects of tеmроrаry differences
rеdчсiпg/(iпсrеаsiпg) the tax base
Cash and cash equivalents
мiсrосrеdits
Fixed assets
оthеr assets
Other obligations

2 688
11 169
69 932

804
26 590

,t 765
(10 973)
(31 286)

20 477
(5 993)

4 453
196

38 646
21 281
20 59в

Net deferred tax аsýеЪ 111 1U (26 0r1) 85 173

Recognized dеfеrrеd tax assets 111 184 (26 01 1) 85 173

Net deferred tax (liabilities)/assets 111 184 (26 01 1) 85 173

,l-,
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{9 Gontingent financial liabilities

{9.{ Legal issues

In Йе notmal coutse оf business, Йе Organization is subject to lawsuits and claims. Management believes
Йat Йе ptobable liabilities, if any, arising ftom such actions or claims uzill not hаче а material advetse effect
on йе futute financial position or perfotmance оf the Otganization.

{9,2 Тах legislation

The tax and customs legislation, as well as the legislation in Йе field of cutency regulation оf the Republic
of UzbeНstan, ate subject to чаqлiпg intelpretations and are subject to frequent changes. Mofeovet,
regulations issued Ьу vatious govefnment bodies mау Ье in conflict йth еасh other, Management's
interpretation of Йе lачr as applied to the opetations and activities of the Otganization mау Ье challenged Ьу
the relevant auЙodties. The Uzbek tax authorities mау take а mote assetdve stance in intelpteting lфslаtrоп
and assessing charges, and it is possible that ftansactions and activities йаt hаче not been challenged in thе

Past urill be challenged. As а result, significant amounts оf additional taxes, fines and penalties mау Ье assessed.
Тах periods remain ореп fot tax teview Ьу the televant tax auЙorities fot five calendat yeats. ptiot to the year
for which thе audit is being carried out. In some cases, rейеws may сочеf longet penods.

The OЦanizadon's management believes that its interptetation of йе televant legislation is сошесt and that
thе OtganDadon's tax, cuffency and customs positions will Ье sustained. As at 31 Decembc 2023,
management has not created а ptovision fot potential tax liabilities. Тhе Otganization estbates that йеrе ate
no potential tax liabilities, except fot Йе uпlikф

2о Related раЁу transactions

For the рuц)оsеs of Йese financial statements, а party is consideted to Ье telated if one оf them has йе ability
to control Йе оЙеt ot to exercise material influence over Йе ойеt party's financial and opetational decisions,
as set out in IAS 24 Related Patty Disclosutes. 'йhеп considedng аll роssiЫе telationships with related patties,
Йе economic content оf such relationships is taken into account, and not only theit legal fotm.

In Йе otdinary coufse of its business, йе Organization conducts transacdons йй its majot shMeholders,
ditectots and othet parties, These opetations include setdements, loans, deposits, grratantees, ttade finance
and foreign exchange transactions. According to Йе Organization's policy, all transacdons йй telated parties
are cattied out о11 Йе same terms and conditions as ttansactions ЙЙ rrrdependent parties.

As at 31 December 2024 алd2O2З,йе Otganization hаs по balances of assets and liabilities, as well as income
and expenses ЙЙ related patties.

21 Fair Vаlче

Fair value is defined as thе ptice at whiсh an instrument could Ье exchanged in а cuttent ttansaction between
willing patties to errtef into an arm's lengЙ transaction, оthеt Йап а fotced sale ot lrquidation. Тhе best
evidence of fair value is а quoted financial instlrrment in an active market. Since there is no liquid matket for
most of Йе Otganization's financial instnrments, йeir fait value must Ье determined based on prevailing
matket condidons and Йе sресiГrс risks associated ЙЙ а patticulм instrument. Тhе estimates ptesented
Ьеlоuz mау not reflect Йе amounts Йat thе Organization is аЫе to obtain from а mмket sale of thе entite
holding оf а particular instrument.

Ап entity uses Йе follouring hietмchy to determine and disclose the fait value оf financial instruments
depending оп йе valuadon techniques:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and U.abilities;
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Level 2: techniques in чrЫсh all rnputs Йat significandy affect fй value ate ditecdy ot indirectly
observable in an open matkeq And
Level 3: Techniques that use inputs Йat sigruficandy affect йir value that afe not based оп observable
mшket data.

Тhе table Ьеlоvr provides an analysis of assets cartied at аmоtйеd cost and tepotted at fair value, Ьу levels
оf Йе measutement Ыetarchy as at 31 Decembg 2024:

Level 1 LeveI 2 Level 3 Book чаlче

FiпапсiаI assefs caried at amortized cosf

Cash and cash equivalents
cash оп hand

Balances оп счrгепt accounts iп other banks

llлicrocredits
Соmmеrсiаl loans to legal entities

Мiсгосгеdits fоr individual епtrерrепечгs

Microcredits and other loans to individuals

449 302
449 з02

3 553 031

3 553 031

90 586 42,t
21 217 814

57 872 129

1 1 496 478

4 002 333
449 302

3 553 031

90 586 421
21 217 814

57 872 129

,t 1 496 478

Тhе tаЫе Ьеlоur ptovides an analysis of assets carried out at amotdzed cost and reported at fait value, Ьу
levels of Йе measutement hierшchy as at 31 Decembet 2023:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Book value

Fiпапсiаl assefs саriеd at amortized cosf

Gash and cash equivalents
cash оп hand

Balances оп счrгепt accounts iп оthеr banks

llлicrocredits
СоmmегdаI loans to legal entities

Microcredits fог individual епtrерrепечгs

мiсrосгеdits and оthег loans to individuals

798 364
798 364

-

17 781 475

1 924 391

50 570 582
13355 118

34 389 612

2 825 852

1 8 579 839
798 364

1 924 391

50 570 582
13355118

34 з89 612

2 825 852

Тhе table below ptoЙdes ап analysis of liabilities caшied at amoftized cost fepoIted at fаir value Ыoken down
Ьу levels оf йе measrrrement hietatchy as at 31 December 2024:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Book value

Fiпапсiаl liabilities carried out at amortized cosf
Other borrowings

Воrrоwiпgs frоm fоrеigп investors
Воrгоwiпgs frоm оthег banks

other financial liabilities

43 281 759

43 281 75g_

9 564 090

9 564 09;

16 208 425

52 845 849

43 281 759
9 564 090

16 208 425
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The tаЫе below ptovides an analysis of liabilities cattied out at аmоfйеd cost accounted for at fait value Ьу
levels of йе measufement hiеиrсhу as at 31 Decembet 2023:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Book чаIче

Fiпапсiаl liabilities carried at amoйzed cosf
Other Ьоrrоwiпgs

Воrrоwiпgs frоm fоrеigп investors
other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities

24 540 880

24 540 880

7 651 892

24 540 880

24 540 880

7 651 892
,-

ц Fair value measufements at Level 2 and Level 3 of Йе fait value hietatchy wete made using а discounted cash
flow model. Тhе fаfu value of floating tate derivatives not quoted in an active market hаs been taken equal to
their cшrying amount. Тhе fait value of fixed rate instruments not quoted in ап active market has Ьееп
estimated based on estimated futute cash flочzs, discounted using cuffent Ьоtrочriпg market intetest fates fot
new instruments ЙЙ similar credit dsk and maturity.

For assets, Йе Organrzation used assumpdons about Йе inctemental tate оп debt and countelpaIty
pfepayment tates. Liabilities are discorrnted at Йе Organization's inctemental borrouzing rate. Demandable
liabi]ities hаче been discounted from йе first day of а potential call to settle the Otganization's liability.

22 Risk management

Risk management Ьу Йе Oцanization is carried out in relation to financial dsks (сtedit, market, crrrfency
dsks, [quidity and interest tate risks), as well as opetational and legal risks. Тhе dsk assessment also рtойdеs
the basis fot optimal risk-based capital allocation, ttansaction pdcing and performance evaluation. The
managemeflt of Йе OrganЙation should ensufe that internal policies and ptocedufes afe ptoperly followed
in otdш to minimize operational and legal risks.

22.1 Gredit risk

Тhе entity takes оп credit risk, wЫсh is the risk йаt а countelparty will not Ье аЬlе to рау in full when due.
Тhе Organization controls cedit risk Ьу setting limits on а single botrower or organizations of telated
boffoтл,efs, as-well as on industry segments. Тhе Organizatron tеgчlаф monitots such risks.

Credit risk. Expected Credit Loss Model апd Ftшdatnentals о{Рtопsiопiпg. The Organйation applies
ап expected ctedit loss model fot the pufpose of ptovisioning Гrrrancral deЬt instruments, thе key рriпфlе of
uzЫсh is thе timely tecogrrition of deterioration or imptovement in йе cedit quality of deЫ financial
insffuments, taking into account cuffent and forwardJoobg information. Тhе amount of expected credit
losses recognized as а ctedit loss рtойsiоп depends on йе degree of deteriotation in credit quality since the
initial recognition of а deЬt fiпапсЫ instrument.

Depending on Йе change in credit quality since initial tecognition, the Entiы classiГres financial instruments
into one оf thе following stages:

о Stage 1 - "12-mопй expected credit losses" - DeЬt financial instruments fot wЫсh there hаs not
been а significant incease in cedit dsk, and fot which 12-mопй expected credit losses are calculated.

о stage 2 - Lifetime expected ctedit losses - unimpaited assets - DeЬt financial instruments йth а
sigrrificant inctease in ctedit risk, but not impaired, fot wЫсh lrfetbe expected ctedit losses ate
calculated.

о stage 3 - "пfedme expected credit losses - impйed assets" - impaited deЬt financial instfuments.

For putchased ot issued impafued financial assets, йе ctedit loss ptoйsion is fotmed in the amount of thе
accumulated changes in expected cedit losses очеt the life of Йе instrument ftom Йе date оf putchase or
origination.
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Factots that indicate а signifrcant iпаеаsе iп credit isk befote йе asset is tecognized as itnpaited.
Тhе main factots indicating а sigrriГrcant increase in credit dsk Ьеfоtе an asset is recognized as bpaired ate:

Тhе presence of overdue debt to the OrganDation for а period оf 31 to 90 days (iпсluslчф;
Significant changes in extemal and intemal ctedit tating resulting ftom а change in credit risk since
initial tecogrrition;

о Deteriotation of the internal rating to йе level at wысh the otganйation decides to refuse to provide
а loan;

о Identification of events that сап affect solvency (icense fevocadon, lawsuits, йоlаtiоп of credit
documentation conditions, etc.).

I{ey featutes of classifying а debt Iiпапсiа] iпsttumепt аý impaited (stage 3):

о the Bottoчret is more йап 90 days past due оп апу deЬt ouzed to the otganization;
о Default testfuctrrring of debt and/ot financial tabilities telated to opetadons in financial matkets апd

expected insolvency;
о other signs of insolvency, thе identification of uzысh leads to йе assigning of а default to the

botrowet фапkшрtсу of Йе botoTret, Йе expected adoption Ьу the bottower of а decision to
liquidate of tefminate actiЙties, Йе рrоЬаЫе non-payment of deЬt Ьу the botrouret, etc.).

Recovety of credit qaality. An improvement in Йе ctedit quality of а borrouret that has idennfied а
sigrrificant increase in credit risk at priot tepornng dates to Stage 1 dsk is detetmined Ьу assessing йе change
in ctedit dsk at йе reporting date ftom initial recognition.

Recovery of ctedit quality ftom ап impйed level to йе level of risk related to the fust stage occurs urhеп
indicators of impaitment disappeш at Йе teporting date, and also if there are по factots at йе repotting date
that indicate а significant incease in ctedit dsk.

Рtойsiопiпg approach fot acquited ot issued itnpaited assets. То calculate the credit loss ptovision fot
impaited assets acquited ot issued, the Otganization estimates the cumulative changes in expected ctedit
losses over the life оf the instrument ftоm the date of acquisition or issue.

А financial asset is consideted to hаче Ьееп acquired ot issued fot an rmparted asset whеп опе of mote events
hаче occutred Йаt have а negative effect on the estimated futute cash flo-ws оf such Гrпапсiаl asset, in
particular, observable data about the follovring eyents at the time оf acquisition ot issuance:

. sigrпficant financial difгrculties of the countelparty/issuer;
о violations of йе terms of the corrtfact, such as late рауmеп!
О granting Ьу а ceditot an assignment to its countetpatty/issuet due to economic feasofls ot

contfactual terms related to Йе financial difficulties of such counterpafty/issuer and wЫсh the
geditor would not hаче otherwise ptovided;

о the еmеIgепсе of йе likelihood of bankruptcy or ойш financial teotganization;
о the disappearance оf ап active matket fot йat financial asset as а result оf йе issuer's financial

difficultres;
о the ршсhаsе ot cteation ofa fiпапсы asset at а deep discount that reflects incurred credit losses.

Methods of va]uation апd пethod of fоппiпg а ptouision fot ctedit losses. Тhеrе аlе tý/o methods fot
estimating expected шedit losses: at thе transaction level of at Йе countefparty level. Ttansaction-level
valuation is used fot all debt instruments, except fоt those in Йе Retail segment.

The countcparty-level valuation is used fot а11 deЬt financial instruments Йthiп Йе Retail segment.

The mаiп mейоd of creating cedit loss provisions, uzЫсh is applred at йе Otganization's level, is the
ptoЙsioning on а collective basis. It is mandatory for fiпапсiаl instruments Йаt afe fiot matetially indehed
ot fot wЫсh no sigrrificant bctease in credit risk ot impairment hаs Ьееп identfied dudng the reporting
petiod.

Ptouisioning of frпапсiаl aýýetý оп ап indiuidual basis.Tbe amourrt оf proйsion fot credit losses fot
еасh deЬt financial asset is based on an esdmate оf йе wеiфtеd avcage expected ctedit losses undet the
considered scenarios.
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О Тhе numbet of scenarios considged and йeit wеiфts ate determined based on the methodology
develoPed ЬУ Йе Organization, takinginto account йе available cuffent as well as rеаsопаЫе fotecast
information, howevet, the numbet оf scenarjos consideted cannot Ье less йап мо (includrng the
100Уо loss scenario) and the рюЬаЬditу of йeit implementation must Ье greatш thап zeto.

О Estbating expected losses in an rndiЙdual ptovisioning approach takes into account the time value
of mОпеу, as well as tеаsопаЫе infotmation about past, cuffent and fotecast futute economic
conditions. Тhе amount of а credit loss ptoйsion is determined as йе difference between thе gross
carrying amouflt of а deЫ financial asset, befote а credit loss proЙsion at the measurement date, and
its tecovetable amount.

Тhе tecovetable amorrnt is estimated using thе discounted cash flow method, vrЫсh is based on expected
futute Payments on thе deЬt financial asset (or оthеt cash flоvrs) usrng Йе effective interest Iate as the
discount tate. ТЫs assessment should take into account йе following sources of cash receiFts:

о ftee саsh flours ftom opetating actiйties;
l future amounts rесочеrаые as а tesult of the sale of collatcal;
О саsh teceipts ftom оthеt soufces - for example, as а fesult oflegal ptoceedings (other than the sale

of pledge) ot bankruptcy proceedings.

Ptouisioning of .friПапсiаl aýýets оп а collective basis. Ctedit loss ptovisions fiot deЬt financial assets ate
collectively assessed based on individual dsk metrics eD, LGD, EAD), vrЫсh ate assigrred to еасh patticular
countefparty/issuet based on an analysis of financial and ойеr information, and vrhich are rеgulаф
monitored,

PD is the ptobability of default, determined оп йе basis of the dsk segment and the internal rating (or
delinquency organization) for Йе relevant period (12 mопЙs ot йе епфе life of the insffument (Ltfetrme
PD)), Values ate determined based оп intetnal models, as .'ш,ell as using mrgtatron maftices ф{аrkоч chains).
Default Ptobability calculations ate adjusted to teflect forwatd-looНng information. Ptobability of default
(PD) indicatots used Ьу the Otganization, using Moody's data fot financial institutions as an example. For
cofpofate data on Йе main sectofs оf thе economy and individuals, data published on the official urebsites of
state bodies, Йе Сепttаl Bank of Йе Republic оf UzbeНstan (rгww.cbu.uz) and othet sources are used. Data
on the quality оf Йе banks' loan portfolio of past pedods, as well as cuffeflt and expected changes in
mactoeconomic vаtiаЫеs (for example, real GDP grоuлЙ, inflation, gtowЙ in teal disposaЫe money income
of the population, etc.) ше used as fotecast infotmati.on, The impact of йеsе economic variables on йе
Ptobability of default is determined using statistical regtession analysis and is calculated as the impact йat
these чаriаЫеs had on the default rate in thе past. An entity estimates expected ctedit losses for а petiod of
12 mопЙs (Stage 1) or thе entfue life of йе instrument, wеiфtеd Ьу йе probability of йе scenMios. Тhеsе
probability-weiфted ECLs ate determined Ьу calculating еасh scenario against йе apptoptiate ECL model
and multiplying them Ьу Йе approptiate scenario vzeights.

Тhе basic segmentation рdпфlе for determining йе Probability оf Default @D) fоr ptovlsiorrrng purposes
is that deЬt financial instruments ЙЙ а similar risk рtоГrlе should Ье аssцпеd to йе same pottfolio йй а
similat level of tisk. Тhе dsk Segment is determined based on йе characteristics of the counterparry/issuer,
corrntfy of residence, size and business model.

LGD is the default loss fate, an estimated loss due to the occuttence of а default based on йе difference in
conftactual cash flows tесеiчаые and cash flouzs йаt the lend* expects to teceive, including ftom collatgal.
TlPicalln Йis value is exptessed as а percentage оf EAD. Values are determined using models developed
ftom intemal statistics.

EAD is Йе amount оf credit exposufe at risk оf default. DeЬt at the time of default is determined based оп
Йе exPected payment schedule, urЫсh varies depending оп thе ýре of ptoduct. Fot products carded at
amortized cost and lump-sum loans at Йе time of default, determined based on the contractual amounts
Payable Ьу the bottowef ovef а 12-mопЙ pеtiod of ovet Йе life of thе Гпапсiаl instrLrment. ТЫs dеЫ is also
adjusted for thе expected ove{pa}Tnent Ьу Йе bortower. Тhе calculation also includes pfepayment ot
tefirrancing assumptions. For rепеwаЫе ptoducts, deЬt at йе time of default is ptojected Ьу adding to the
cuffent balance of finds used а "ctedit conversion factot" йаt takes into account the expected use of the
temaining limit at thе time оf default. These assumptions vary depending on йе type of ptoduct, йе cuttent
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use оf Йе limit and оЙеt behavioral chatactetistics of а parГiculat borrower. Values are detetmined usrng
models developed ftom intemal statistics.

Dеtеtтпiпаtiоп of the credit loss ptouision for ctedit telated соtпtпiftпепrs. If the counterparty hаs
cuffent balance sheet debt, Йе assessment of ctedit loss provisions fot credit related commitments is carried
out in accordance ЙЙ Йе approaches applied to ptovisioning йе balance sheet debt of t}пs counteФarty,
taking into account thе credit convetsion factor (ССF) detetmined ЬоЙ on the basis of statistical data and
usingBaselvalues . If Йе counte{pattyhas опlу ctedittelated commitrrrents, cteditloss ptoйsions are assessed
depending on Йе amoufit оf Йе commitrnent, taking into account ССF, on ап individual or collective basis.

CreЙt quality of frпапсiаl iпstumелrs. Тhе classification of financial assets into five categories of credit
tisk is а sumlnary of the ctedit quality оf financial assets covefed Ьу IFRS 9.

о "Minimum credit tisk" means assets whose countetparties demonsttate а stable ability to meet
financial obligations in а timф mannef йЙ an insignificant probability of default.

о "Low credit risk' mealrs assets йй countetparties йat have а low probability of default and а Ыgh
abiПty to meet financial obligations on time.

о "Medium ctedit risk" means assets йth countelpatties йаt hаче а modetate ptobabiJity of default,
demonstfate лп луеtаgе ability to meet financial obligations оп time and tequire more cateful
attendon at Йе monitoring stage.

о "нъh credit r{sk" - assets йth countelpatties йаt hаче а Ыgh ptobability of default tequire special
attendon at Йе monitoring stage.

о 'Default' mea"lrs assets that hаче indications of impairment йаt meet йе definition of deйult.

22.2 lUIarket risk

Тhе Organizadon assumes matket tisk associated Йth open positions in interest fate, сuffепсу and equity
instnrments that afe exposed to genetal and specific matket movements.

The objective оf matket risk management is to control that exposute to market risk does not go beyond
acceptable parametefs, while епsшiпg Йе optimization of the teftrm feceiyed for the risk taken,

22.3 Geographic risk

Тhе following is ап analysis of Йе geogtapЫcal concentration of йе Organization's financial assets and
liabilities as at 31, Decembet 2024:

OEGD and FАтF
mеmЬеr

countraes

35
(iп thousands of UZS)

Total
Other

соч ntries

FiпапсiаJ assefs
Cash and cash equivalents
Due fгоm Ьапks
мiсrосrеdits

3 966 573
3 007

88 531 286

3 966 573
3 007

88 5з1 286
Total financial assets 92 500 866 92 500 866

Fiпапсiаl liabilities
Оthеr Ьоrrоwiпgs
оthеr fi папсiаl liabilities ,tб 208 42;

21 462 497 31 38з 352 52 845 849
16 208 425

Total financial liabilities 16 208 425 21 462 497 31 383 352 69 054 274

Net fi nancial assets/(l iab il ities) 76 292 441 (21 462 497) (3f 383 352) 23 446 592
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Тhе folloчring is лп analysis of the geographical
liaъilities as at 31 Dесеmъеr 2023:

36
(iп thousands of UZS)

concentration оf Йе Organizadon's financial assets and

uzbekistan

OECD and
FАтF

mеmЬеr
сочпtriеs

Other
countries Tota!

Fiпапсiаl assefs
Cash and cash equivalents
Microcredits

,l8 520 469
49 177 501

1 8 520 469
49 1 77 501

Total financia! assets 67 697 970 67 697 970

Financia! liabilities
Оthег Ьоrrоwiпgs
оthеr fi nancial liabilities 7 651 892

12 326 052 12 214 827 24 540 880
7 651 892

Tota! financial liabilities 7 651 892 12 326 052 12 214 827 32 192 772

Net financial liabilities 60 046 078 12 326 12 214 827 35 505 1 98

22.4 Gчrrепсу risk

The tаЫе Ьеlочz provides а general analysis of йе Organization's cuffency dsk as at йе end of Йе teporting
period:

Мопеtаry
financialIlЛопеtаry

fiпапсiаl assets

92 500 866

obliqations

2024
UZS
USD
EUR

58 бз5 636
(23 026 457)

33 865 230
23 а26 457
12 162 587 12 162

Total 92 500 866 69 054 274 23 446 592

2023
UZS
USD

67 78з ,143 7 097 774
24 540 880

60 685 369
24 540 880

TotaI 67 783 143 31 638 654 36 1 44 489

тhе entrý accepts the risk associated йй thе effect оf fluctuations in foteign cuffency ехсhапgе fates оп its
financial position and cash flows. Тhе Management sets limits on the level of tisk accepted ЬуЪuшепсу and
in genetal, Ьоth at the end of еасh day and йthiп one day, and monitors compliance йй йеm daily. Тhе
Organization's Treasuty measufes its foteign ехсhапgе risk Ьу ana7yztngits net foteign exchange position
denominated in йе same crшfelrcy and analyzes йе effect of apprccration/depreciation of the same cuffency
in relation to the Uzbek Som on the OtganDation's profit and loss.

Тhе tаЫе below sets fоtй йе changes in financial tesult and comprehensive income because of роssiЫе
changes in exchange tates used at Йе end оf Йе teporting petiod, uziй all ойеt condidons rЙаiпiпg
constant. А teasonably possible change in йе ехсhапgе fate fot еасh cuffency is detetmined based о., thi
maximum fluctuation limits of rates changed Ьу 10% compared to the curtent ones.

31 DесеmЬеr
2024

31 December
2023

US dоIlаr stгengthens Ьу 10% (2 302 646)
2 302 646US dоllаr weakens Ьч 10%

(2 454 088)
2 454 088

EUR strengthens Ьу 10О/о (1 216 259)
1 216 259EUR dоllаг weakens Ьч 10о/о

The risk was calculated only fot саsh balances in crrttencies ойеt йап йе functional cutrency of thе
Organization.
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оп demand and
less than 1

month

37
(iп thousands of UZS)

22,5 Liquidity risk

Liqutdity tisk is the risk Йаt an entity will eficountef difficulty in meeting financial obtgations. The
otganization does not accumulate funds in case it is necessary to fulfill а11 the above obligations at а time,
since, based on thе accumulated wotk expetience, it is роssiЫе to ptedict йth а sufficient degtee оf accuracy
йе level of funds necessary to fulfill йese obligations.

Тhе tаЫе belouz shovrs the maturity analysis of non-derivative financial assets cartied at cafrying amount
based on conttactцal maturities, excluding assets that сап Ье easily realized if cash outfloчzs associated йth
financial liabilities Ьесоmе necessafy. Such financial assets are included in the matutity analysis based оп йе
expected date of disposal. Impлred loans and ЬоttоЙпgs are included in the table at catrying amount less
provision for impairment and based on йе expected timing of cash infloчzs.

The analysis of liqЙdity nsk and intefest fate nsk as of 31 December 2024 is ptesented in йе fоllоvziпg table:

Frоm 1 to 3
months

Frоm 3 months Моrе than 1

to 1 чеаr r Total

FiпапсiаI assefs
Cash and cash equivalents
мiсrосrеdits

4
6 952 325 8 210 98; зб 949 42; зб 4,r3 33З

3 09з
8в 531 286

Total financial assets оп which
interest ассrчеs 6 952 329 8 210 983 36 949 425 36 421 642 88 534 379

cash and cash equivalents
Total financial assets

3 966 573
,l0 918 816 8 210 983 36 949 425

3 966 57з
36 421 642 92 500 866

Fiпапсiаl liabilities
оthеr fi nancial Iiabilities 2 309 992

1 259 409
2 110 791

37 819 371
11 787 642
1 1 299 370

16 208 425
52 845 849оthеr

Total financial obligations оп
which interest ассrчеs

2 467 69;

3 569 401 2 467 699 39 930 1 62 23 087 012 69 054 274

Total financial liabilities 3 569 401 2 467 699 39 930 162 23 087 012 69 054 274

Difference Ьемееп fiпапсiаl assets
and liabilities 7 349 415 5 743 284 (2 980 737) 1 з 334 630 23 446 592

Diffегепсе between fi nancial assets
and liabilities that еаrп interest ,lз 334 630 19 480 105

Difference between financial
assets and liabilities оп which
interest аGсrчеs. счm 3 382 928 9 126 212

9,В7о/о

6 145 475 19 480 105

6,64о/о 21,обоь

Difference between financial
assets and liabilities оп which
interest асGrчеs, as а реrсепtаgе
of total ass9!9, gt!ццчlаtiче totals 3,66%
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Тhе апфsis of liquidity dsk and interest rate risk as оf 31

оп demand and
less than f

month

(iп thousands 
"f 

U;3

DесеmЪ et 2023 is presented in йе follouring tаЪlе:

Frоm 1 to 3
months

Frоm 3 months More than 1

to 1 чеаr r Total

Fiпапсiаl assefs
Cash and cash equivalents
мiсrосrеdits

15 857 084
1 177 921 2 76а 49; 15 162 59; 30 076 48;

1 5 857 084
49 ,17т 501

Total financiaI assets оп which
interest ассrчеs 1 7 035 005 2 760 492 15 162 599 30 076 489 65 034 585

cash and cash equivalents
Total financial assets 15 162 599 30 076 489

Fiпапсiаl liabilities
оthеr fi nancial liabilities 526 765

65 424

592 1 88

273 333
5 802 161

6 791 054 7 651 892
1 8 673 295 24 540 880оthеr Ьоrгоwi

Total financial obligations оп
which interest accrues 60 741 6 075 494 25 464 349 7 651 892

Total financial liabilities 592 1 88 60 741 6 075 494 25 464 349 7 651 892

Diffеrепсе between fi nancial assets
and liabilities

Diffеrепсе beМeen financia! assets
and liabilities that еаrп interest

19 106 202

16 442 817

2 699 751

2 699 751

9 087 105

9 087 105

4 612 140 60 046 078

4 612 140 57 382 693

Difference between financial
assets and liabilities on which

llr

interest ассrчеs, счmч 16 442 817 19 142 568 28 229 673 32 841 813

Difference between financial
assets and liabilities оп which
interest accrues, as а реrсепtаgе
of total cumulative totals 24,29оъ 28,28о/о 41,70о/о 48,51оъ

22.6 lnterest rate risk

The entity accepts the risk associated Йth the effect of fluctuations in market intetest lateý on its financial
position and саsh flоurs. Such fluctuations mау increase йе level оf intetest margins, but if йеrе is an
unexPected change in intetest tates, Йе interest matgin may also decrease of cause losses.

Тhе organization is exposed to intefest tate r{sk, pdmarily as а tesult of its activities in ptoйding Ioans at fixed
intetest tates in amounts and fot penods Йаt differ ftom the amounts and terms оf taising funds at fixed
intetest fates. In pracdce, intefest Iates are usually set for а short period. In addition, intefest tates fixed in the
terms of contracts for ЬоЙ assets and liabilities ate often revised Ьу mutuаl agteement in accordance йth the
cuffent market situation.

Тhе Otganization monitots intetest fates оп financial instruments. The table below shоvrs inte{est fates оп
financial instruments as of Йе teportbg date:

2024 2023

UzS USD EUR UzS USD

-

FiпапсiаI assefs
Cash and cash equivalents

Due frоm banks

мiсrосгеdits

18о/о

32%-58%

1о/о

0%-10,5%

1о/о

32о/о,58о/о

9%-10,75оь
FiпапсiаI liabilities
оthеr ьоrrо

ц

-

2 663 385 2 663 385
1 9 698 390 2 760 492 67 697 970

60 741
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23 ýegment lnformation

Тhе main fоrmаt fot providing information on the segments of йе Organization's activities is the
presentation of infotmation on opetating segments, auxiliary - on geogtaphical segments.

All operations and services ate related to Йе dients of йе Republic of UzbeНstan, A1l clients of the
Organization ate residents of йе Republic of UzbeНstan.

Z3.1 Operating segments

Тhе Otganization operates йrough Мо main opetating segments:

. Individuals

. Legal entities

. IndiЙdualentrepteneuts

Ttansacdons between opetating segments are cartied out оп notmal commetcial tetms. Тhе funds are
reallocated beМeen thе segments, vzЫсh leads to а reallocadon of financing costs, taken into account in йе
calculation of operating iпсоmе. Interest accruing on йеsе funds is calculated on йе basis of йе
Organization's cost of capital. Thete are no othеt materia], income of expenses arisrng from transactions
beffieen opetating segments. Segment assets and ]iabilities fepfesent assets and liabilities йat make up the
majotity of the Ьаlапсе sheet but exclude items such as taxadon оf bortowings. Intetnal costs and transfer
Pri.irg adjustments ate included in the tespective segment results. Revenue shatrng agteements ate used to
fairly allocate fevenue teceived from external customefs between segments.

ТЬе table belowptovides inbrmation оп Йе segment concenftation of assets and liabi]ities as at 31 Decembet
2024:

ц
Fiпапсiаl assefs

Cash and cash equivalents
Due frоm banks
мiсrосrеdits 1 1 405 58; 20 633 74; 56 491 95;

3 966 573
3 007

3 966 573
3 007

88 531 286

lndividual
lndividuals

Total financial assets 1 1 405 587 20 633 745 56 491 954 3 969 580 92 500 866

Financial liabilities
Other Ьоrrоwiпgs
оthеr fi nancial liabilities

52 845 849
16 208 425

52 845 849
16 208 425

Total financial liabilities 69 054 274 69 054 274

Net financial liabiIities 1 1 405 587 20 633 745 56 491 954 65 084 694 23 446 592

Тhе table Ьеlоur ptovides infotmation оп segment concenttation of assets and liabilities as at 31 Decembet
202З:

lndividual

FiпапсiаI assefs

Cash and cash equivalents
Due frоm banks

lndivid uals l entities

2 697 1s; 12 900 02;

rепечrs unallocated

1 8 520 469

Total

33 580 2s;
,18 520 469
49 177 501

мiсгосrеdits 2 697 186 ,l2 900 028 33 580 287 ,t 8 520 469 67 697 970
Total financial assets

Fiпапсiаl liabilities
other financial liabilities

24 540 880
7 651 892

24 540 880
7 651 892

Total financial liabilities 24 540 880 7 651 892 32 192 772

д

Net financial iabilities 2 697 186 11 640 85 33 580 287 { 0 868 577 35 505 1 98
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Approved and signed on Ъеhаlf of йе management оf йе Organпation:

40
(iп thousands of UZS)

dh-/
Ruф#поча F.Y.
сыеf Accountant

Guseynov N,{.A.

General Director

07 July 2025

ffioAslsciЁblT

The поtы опРаgеs б to 40 are ап iпtеgrаlРаrt of these jпапtiаl stаtеmепts.


